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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE" )

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China E-Information Technology Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWILN 7

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$63,124,000 (2018: HK$57,856,000),
representing tuition fee revenue and sales of educational products.
Gross profit for the year under review was approximately
HK$36,141,000 (2018: HK$28,964,000), representing a gross
profit margin of 57.3% (2018: 50.1%) for the year under review.

During the year, cost of goods sold and services provided amounted
to approximately HK$26,983,000 (2018: HK$28,892,000),
representing the overheads incurred in the distance learning
courses.

Other income for the year under review was approximately
HK$5,582,000 (2018: HK$15,176,000) representing an interest
income of approximately HK$2,541,000 (2018: HK$422,000),
a sundry income of approximately HK$nil (2018: HK$20,000),
net unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$nil (2018: HK$49,000), fair value
gain of contingent consideration receivable of approximately
HK$1,406,000 (2018: HK$14,685,000), net exchange gains of
approximately HK$174,000 (2018: HKS$nil), gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$920,000
(2018: HK$nil) and gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$541,000 (2018: HK$nil).

Administrative expenses for the year under review were
approximately HK$60,207,000 (2018: HK$61,519,000), of
which staff related costs were approximately HK$25,155,000
(2018: HK$18,302,000) and legal and professional fees were
approximately HK$2,940,000 (2018: HK$12,263,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWILN 7

Other losses for the year under review were approximately
HK$3,796,000 (2018: HK$10,000), representing a net unrealised
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$3,796,000 (2018: HKS$nil) and net exchange
losses of approximately HK$nil (2018: HK$10,000).

The share of loss of an associate of approximately HK$1,517,000
(2018: share of profit of HK$3,628,000) is contributed by an
associate, Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Co., Ltd., (“Beijing
Youli”) which was acquired in April 2017.

Equity-settled share-based payment amounted to approximately
HK$30,800,000 were recognised for the year under review (2018:
HK$nil) as a total of 375,100,000 share options were granted by
the Company on 2 July 2019.

During the year, the Group made a provision for impairment loss
on investment in an associate, Beijing Youli, of approximately
HK$27,719,000 (2018: HK$55,027,000). The reason of
recognising such impairment losses is due to decreasing consumer
spending and general economic conditions. Following the outbreak
of trade war in 2018, it continuously affect global economies. The
trade war brought negative effect on the economies, consumers
are losing confidence and sacrifice online shopping.

In addition, the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) outbreak
has opened up the possibility of a economy recession, this has
created a significant adverse impact on the economic and has the
potential to cause market dislocation. The coronavirus outbreak is
hitting people and economy hard, economists predict the economy
and GDP growth will slow in next year. Therefore, the financial
forecasts were hit by economic disruption from the outbreak.
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Finance costs during the year were approximately HK$13,267,000
(2018: HK$10,225,000).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly by cash
revenue generated internally from operating activities. As at 31
December 2019, the Group has current assets of approximately
HK$139,410,000 (2018: HK$174,398,000), including bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$18,967,000 (2018:
HK$70,898,000). Total non-current assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$42,169,000 (2018: HK$75,695,000),
representing property, plant and equipment, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, goodwill, investment in an associate
and right-of-use assets. Total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$181,579,000 (2018: HK$250,093,000) as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowing. Total current liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$93,464,000 (2018: HK$29,249,000),
which mainly comprised other payables, convertible notes and
lease liabilities. Total liabilities of the Group were approximately
HK$94,845,000 (2018: HK$69,785,000). As at 31 December
2019, the Group had net assets of approximately HK$86,734,000
(2018: HK$180,308,000).

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio of the Group, as expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 0.52 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: 0.28).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWILN 7

Share Capital

As at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019, the authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into
50,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each and the issued share
capital of the Company was approximately HK$375,130,000
divided into 3,751,297,033 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Convertible Notes 2011

On 21 July 2011, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with a group of independent subscribers for the issuance of
some convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$42,000,000, bearing an interest rate of 3% per annum,
maturing in 12 months from the date of issue, and convertible into
ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject
to adjustments. Subsequently, the Group issued two tranches
of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 C”) on 25 August
2011 for the principal amount of HK$19,500,000 and (“Convertible
Notes 2011 D”) on 14 September 2011 for the principal amount of
HK$22,500,000. Of which, tranche C was fully converted in 2011.
On 10 September 2012, the maturity date of the tranche D was
postponed for another 6 months to 7 March 2013. On 7 March
2013, the maturity date of the tranche D was further postponed
for 12 months to 6 March 2014. As at 1 January 2014, the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes 2011 D was
HK$12,800,000.

On 6 March 2014, the Company has redeemed one of
the Convertible Notes 2011 D with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 in accordance with notice from the holder. The
Company is contacting the holder of the Convertible Notes 2011
D with the principal amount of HK$2,800,000 in order to settle the
convertible notes. As at 31 December 2019, the Company has not
received any reply or notice from the holder and the Company has
the funds available for settlement.
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Convertible Notes 2020

On 11 October 2016 and 24 October 2016, the Company
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Supplemental
Agreement with the Vendor in relation to the acquisition of 49%
equity interest in Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Company Limited
(“Beijing Youli”).

Completion of the issue of the Convertible Notes 2020 (CN2020)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$91,581,000 have been
issued, of which HK$54,215,952 are issued to the company
nominated by Mr. Wang Peng and HK$37,365,048 are issued to
the company nominated by Mr. Ma Liejun took place on 25 Agpril
2017.

The noteholders converted CN2020 in the principal amount of
HK$36,632,400 on 15 May 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Youli met the
2017 Profit Target (being the net profit after tax of Beijing Youli
for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 in the amount
of HK$12,600,000). For detailed information regarding the Profit
Target, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
11 October 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Beijing Youli failed
to meet the 2018 Profit Target (being the net profit after tax of
Beijing Youli for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 in
the amount of HK$15,120,000), the consideration payable to the
vendors shall be reduced by approximately HK$11,261,429.

As at 31 December 2019, the exercise in full of the vested
conversion rights would result in the issue and allotment of
approximately 183,559,542 new shares of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWILN 7

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Although
the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
has been moderately changing, it remains relatively stable. As
the expenditure in PRC was covered by the sales in PRC, the
management considers that the Group has no significant foreign
exchange exposures. Foreign exchange risk arising from the
normal course of operations is considered as minimal. As at 31
December 2019, the Group has no foreign currency borrowings
and has not used any financial instrument for hedging the foreign
exchange risk.

Significant investments and material
acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2019, save as disclosed in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no significant
investments and material acquisition were made by the Group
(2018: nil).

Contingent liabilities and charges on the
Group’s assets

There were no significant contingent liabilities or charges on the
Group’s assets as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet
platform for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs.
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On 1 July 2010, the Joint Construction of Network Education
College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine Agreement
(IR B ER2REHE 20k E ) (“Joint Construction
Agreement”) entered into between Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine (dt R E %K E) and Hunan IIN Medical Network
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan IIN Medical”),
a subsidiary of IIN Medical (BVI), was successfully renewed. In
accordance with the Joint Construction Agreement, Hunan IIN
Medical’s entitlement to share 60% of the profits of Distance
Education College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine
(bR g K2R A 207 ) (“‘Distance Education College”)
is reduced to 51% profit-sharing percentage during the year
2010 while all other terms and conditions thereunder are not less
favourable than those under the Joint Construction Agreement.

On 14 April 2015, Hunan IIN Medical, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Agreement”) with the Beijing University of Chinese Medicine
(bR EzE K E) (“BUCM”) for amending the agreement dated
29 June 2010 signed between them. Pursuant to the Agreement,
Hunan IIN Medical will pass its daily business management and
administrative management in respect of the Distance Education
College of the Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (4t 7 A28 %
RERIZH A £07) (the “Distance Education College”) to BUCM.

This arrangement is primarily made for the purpose of consolidating
the daily business management and administrative management of
the Distance Education College, so as to reduce operating costs
and increase revenue, fully leverage the advantages of both parties
in their respective areas, and lay a solid foundation for overall
expansion in the future.
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On 2 July 2019, a total of 375,100,000 share options (the “Share
Options”) were granted by the Company to certain eligible
participants (the “Grantees”) to subscribe for ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company (the “Shares”) pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 May 2011.

Among the above 375,100,000 Share Options granted, a total of
46,600,000 Share Options were granted to the directors and chief
executive. Detalils regarding the grant of share options were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2019.

In July 2019, the Company received the audited financial
statements of Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Company Limited
(“Beijing Youli”) for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019,
Beijing Youli fails to meet the 2018 Profit Target (being the net
profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
March 2019 in the amount of HK$15,120,000), the consideration
payable to the vendors shall be reduced by approximately
HK$11,261,429.

On 30 July 2019, a Placing Agreement was entered into between
the Company and the Placing Agent, pursuant to which the
Company has appointed the Placing Agent to procure altogether
not less than six independent institutional, corporate or individual
investors, to place Convertible Bonds of principal amount up to
HK$187,000,000.

Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
Conversion Price of HK$0.25 per Conversion Share, a total of
748,000,000 Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued,
which represent (i) approximately 19.94% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 July 2019; and (i) approximately
16.62% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the Conversion Shares (assuming there is no other change in
the number of issued Shares between 30 July 2019 and the full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds).

Details regarding the placing of convertible bonds were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 July 2019.
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On 20 August 2019, the Company and the Placing Agent entered
into a supplemental placing agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to revise the aggregate principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds and to postpone the Long Stop Date. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Agreement, the aggregate principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds to be placed by the Placing Agent is revised
from up to HK$187,000,000 to up to HK$120,000,000.

Based on the revised aggregate principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds, assuming the Convertible Bonds are fully
placed, upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
Conversion Price, the maximum number of Conversion Shares
to be issued by the Company will be changed from 748,000,000
Conversion Shares to 480,000,000 Conversion Shares.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, the Long Stop Date is
postponed from 20 August 2019 to 10 September 2019 (or such
later date as the Placing Agent and the Company may agree).

Assuming all the Convertible Bonds under the Placing Agreement
(as amended by the Supplemental Agreement) have been
placed, the gross proceeds and net proceeds of the Placing
amount will be revised to HK$120,000,000 and approximately
HK$117,200,000 respectively, after deducting commission and
other related expenses of Placing. The Company intends to
apply the net proceeds (i) as the general working capital of the
Group; and (i) for the development and expansion of the Group’s
existing businesses, especially (a) the business of the Company’s
subsidiary Sinzhongyi Consultancy PTE. Ltd. for its establishment
of a Chinese medicine health center and training center in
Singapore; and (b) the business of the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC.

Details regarding the Supplemental Agreement in relation to
placing of convertible bonds were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 20 August 2019.

On 10 September 2019, the Company and the Placing Agent
entered into a 2nd supplemental placing agreement (the “2nd
Supplemental Agreement”) to further postpone the Long Stop
Date from 10 September 2019 to 24 September 2019 (or such
later date as the Placing Agent and the Company may agree).
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Details regarding the 2nd Supplemental Agreement in relation to
placing of convertible bonds were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 September 2019.

Given that certain conditions precedent set out in the Placing
Agreement (as amended by the Supplemental Agreement and
the 2nd Supplemental Agreement) (the “Amended Placing
Agreement”) have not been fulfilled on or before the Long Stop
Date, the Amended Placing Agreement has accordingly lapsed on
24 September 2019.

Details regarding the lapse of placing of convertible bonds were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 September
2019.

On 5 August 2019, Sinzhongyi Consultancy PTE Ltd. (#7# 3%
RIS AR AR (“Sinzhongyi”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Eastern Art Holdings PTE Limited ( 8 75 # {if 4%
A ABRAR]) (‘Eastern Art”) entered into a memorandum of
cooperation (the “Memorandum of Cooperation”) in relation to the
cooperation on the development of a traditional Chinese medicine
recuperation and tourism development project in Jurong Lake
District, Singapore.

Pursuant to the Memorandum of Cooperation, Sinzhongyi and
Eastern Art will jointly develop a traditional Chinese medicine
recuperation and tourism development project in Jurong Lake
District, Singapore by the lakeside of Jurong Lake, Singapore. The
project will be operated with the characteristics of recuperation,
rehabilitation and physiotherapy with traditional Chinese medicine.

Eastern Art will be principally responsible for coordinating and
obtaining the relevant procedures and approval documents for
land and planning from the government, competent authorities and
tourism board in Singapore and responsible for the implementation
of project development. Sinzhongyi will be principally responsible
for the establishment, business invitation, operation and
management of the relevant organisations including recuperation
and rehabilitation with traditional Chinese medicine, training for
traditional Chinese medicine, medicine diet and nursing homes.
Details regarding the Memorandum of Cooperation were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 5 August 2019.
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On 14 November 2019, Sinzhongyi and Eastern Art entered
into a supplemental memorandum of cooperation in relation to
the cooperation on the development of the Target Project (the
“Supplemental Memorandum of Cooperation”).

Pursuant to the Supplemental Memorandum of Cooperation,
Sinzhongyi and Eastern Art will jointly invest in establishing a
joint venture company (the “Joint Venture Company”) to develop
the Target Project, in which Sinzhongyi and Eastern Art will hold
51% and 49% equity interest, respectively. The Target Project wil
be named the “Traditional Chinese Medicine Recuperation and
Tourism Development Project”. The Target Project comprises
the construction of a centralised traditional Chinese medicine
recuperation centre, a nursing home, a traditional Chinese
medicine research and development centre and talent training
centre, as well as a traditional Chinese medicine museum, a
botanic garden, a hotel, apartments and the relevant ancillary
commercial facilities in Jurong Lake District, Singapore. It will
occupy a site area of 70,000 square metres and have a total gross
floor area of no less than 100,000 square metres. The Target
Project will be operated by the Joint Venture Company to build
an overseas education base for the remote traditional Chinese
medicine education school of the Group. Further details of the
establishment of the Joint Venture Company (including but not
limited to the amount of capital contribution) will be determined
following further negotiations between Sinzhongyi and Eastern Art.

Details regarding the Supplemental Memorandum of Cooperation
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 14
November 2019.
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With effect from 30 September 2019, Mr. Lin Ruiping (“Mr. Lin”)
has been appointed as the honorary chairman of the Company.
Mr. Lin, aged 64, born in Fuqging, Fujian Province, obtained a junior
college diploma from Beijing Institute of Economic Management
(4b 4% 7 & 38 22 f5% ), majoring in business administration. He is
currently a senior economist and engineer. Mr. Lin has over 20
years’ experience in managing different companies, including
acting as chairman of property developers, asset management
companies and international gourmet companies. Mr. Lin is the
father of Ms. Lin Yan, an executive Director of the Company.
Details regarding the appointment of honorary chairman were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 30 September
2019.

On 31 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% issued share
capital of Earth Spa Inc Pte Ltd. (“Earth Spa”) from an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately SGD100,000
(equivalent of approximately HK$574,000). Earth Spa is a
company incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. Earth
Spa is principally engaged in the provision of healthcare services
in Singapore. The directors are of the view that the acquisition
provides opportunities to the Company to broaden its business
portfolio.

In addition, the Company will continue to look for other attractive
investments in the PRC and locally in an attempt to diversify into
different business areas to reduce the reliance upon existing
e-learning business and strengthen the positive cash flow and
earnings for the Group in the long run.

BZZ-AFAA=THER MHFEEMEE]D
EELZERARBREIRE MEL 645 HER
BEEE FERIERKEEEERESEXERESE
RIBEE - B AR — % RS & TR0 - AT - AR
EERBE _TZFEETARA &R EPEER
FHERNR., BEEBERARMERRMARERE
ER -MAEERARRBATEEMML LR &
FREIFZHABINARRRAR-_Z-NFN
A=1tRZR&E-

RZE-—NFT_A=1+—RH Fr&EEE—EHEL
% = 5 Y BEarth Spa Inc Pte Ltd.([Earth Spal) 2
100% B TR - (X.{B 47/5100,000%7 7T (HHE 49
574,000/ 7T ) > Earth Spa/ — B 5 #7 03K 5 A 2
2 BBRAR - Farth Spax ZERFTIE K BIRHERE
RERG -EERA WBEREARAREANELKA

BrEftEe -

AN RR RS AEEE T B R A S E M AF RS
NERE  EABERERMEFEEARDHEAR
MEHBEBNERBARRAAEENRAERS

mERAF

16  CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. - HEI## SN EEER AT



Major risk areas of our business operations

Risks related to health epidemics and other
outbreaks

Education industry is vulnerable to health epidemics such as
the outbreak of Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) or other
epidemics. Any of such occurrences could cause severe disruption
to our operations, and may even require a temporary closure of
our facilities. Such closures may disrupt our business operations
and adversely affect our results of operations. Our operation could
also be disrupted if our students or teachers were affected by
such health epidemics. Up to the date of this annual report, based
on the risks mentioned above, the directors consider the Group
will not suffer any material loss to our business operations nor any
significant adverse impacts to our financial performance during the
financial year and the near future.

Risks related to China’s economic and social
conditions

A significant portion of our business operations is conducted in
China and the revenue are mainly made in China. Accordingly, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects
are affected significantly by economic and social conditions in
China and by continued economic growth in China as a whole.

While China’s economy has experienced significant growth over
the past decades, the rate of growth has been slowing. Following
the outbreak of Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19), any
stimulus measures designed to boost the Chinese economy may
contribute to higher inflation, which might adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition. Up to the date of this
annual report, based on the risks mentioned above, the directors
consider the Group will not suffer any material loss to our business
operations nor any significant adverse impacts to our financial
performance during the financial year and the near future.
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Risks related to the licensing requirement in PRC
regulation

The Group is required to obtain and maintain various licenses and
permits in order to conduct and operate our business. If these new
laws and regulations are promulgated, additional licenses may be
required for our operations. All the time, the Group has been taking
steps to meet these requirements, however, if our operations do
not comply with these new regulations at the time they become
effective, or if the Group fail to obtain any licenses required under
these new laws and regulations, the Group might be subject to
penalties and disrupt our business operations. Up to the date
of this annual report, based on the risks mentioned above, the
directors consider the Group will not suffer any material loss to our
business operations nor any significant adverse impacts to our
financial performance during the financial year and the near future.

Risks related to regulation of information disseminated
over the internet in PRC

The PRC government has adopted regulations governing internet
access and the distribution of news and other information over
the internet. Under these regulations, internet content providers
and internet publishers are prohibited from posting or displaying
over the internet content that violates PRC laws and regulations or
impairs the national dignity of China. Failure to comply with these
requirements may result in the closure of the related websites.
The website operator may also be held liable for such censored
information displayed on or linked to the websites. If any of our
websites, including those used for our online education business,
are found to be in violation of any such requirements, we may be
penalised by relevant authorities, and our operations or reputation
could be adversely affected. Up to the date of this annual report,
based on the risks mentioned above, the directors consider the
Group will not suffer any material loss to our business operations
nor any significant adverse impacts to our financial performance
during the financial year and the near future.
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Employee Information

For the year under review, the total staff costs (including the
share based payment expense) amounted to approximately
HK$52,455,000 (2018: HK$18,302,000), representing an increase
of approximately HK$34,153,000 over the previous year. The
increase was mainly due to a total of 375,100,000 share options
were granted by the Company on 2 July 2019 (2018: nil).

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees were kept at
a market level and employees were rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. Staff benefits
include contribution to the mandatory provident fund and share
options. Share options were granted to employees of the Group
in the current year (2018: nil), details are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s existing e-learning business will remain the core
business and main cash generator in the near future. This business
is expected to grow in a rather stable manner.

Furthermore, the Group will implement certain cost-effective
measures to streamline the operation so as to enhance the
profitability and value of this e-learning business. The Company
will continue to look for opportunities for our existing business,
particularly in developing both vertically and horizontally within the
Group’s existing medical education platform, expanding further into
our service network, increase the shareholders’ value and reduce
business risk.

In addition, the Company will continue to look for other attractive
investments in the PRC and locally in an attempt to diversify into
different business areas to reduce the reliance upon existing
e-learning business and strengthen the positive cash flow and
earnings for the Group in the long run.
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Biographical Details of Honorary Chairman, Directors and

Senior Management

REXR EENRSREEAEBRE

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Lin Ruiping (“Mr. Lin”), aged 64, appointed as the honorary
chairman of the Company with effect from 30 September 2019.
Mr. Lin, born in Fuqging, Fujian Province, obtained a junior college
diploma from Beijing Institute of Economic Management (1f 5 4%
S & 12 22 ), majoring in business administration. He is currently
a senior economist and engineer. Mr. Lin has over 20 years’
experience in managing different companies, including acting as
chairman of property developers, asset management companies
and international gourmet companies. Mr. Lin is the father of Ms.
Lin Yan, an executive director of the Company. Mr. Lin has been
appointed as the honorary chairman and is not a director or officer
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yuan Wei (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2013 and
further appointed as the authorised representative and compliance
officer of the Company on 14 February 2014. Mr. Yuan has also
been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on
3 May 2018. Mr. Yuan holds an associate degree in Heilongjiang
Academy of Finance and Management for Comrades (214 Bf
B ERE IR 2Ry, He joined the Beiing Commercial Bank (1t ;i
PEEERTT) in 1993 and worked for 12 years. He left the position of
manager at the credit department of the Beijing Commercial Bank
in 2005. Mr. Yuan then engaged in the finance-related business
and has gained over 20 years of experience in the financial and
banking sector. Mr. Yuan is mainly responsible for the strategy
formulation of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Yuan
did not hold any directorships in any listed public company in the
last three years.
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Ms. Zhang Jianxin (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 52, was appointed as
an executive director on 13 July 2016.

Ms. Zhang Jianxin, graduated from the Central Radio and
Television University in accounting in 2003, and obtained the
Senior International Finance Manager Qualification Certificate
from International Financial Management Association and China
Association of Chief Financial Officers in 2008. From July 2007
to August 2013, Ms. Zhang was the financial controller of Beijing
Hua Tuo Education Technology Company Limited, a wholly own
subsidiary of the Company. Since September 2013, Ms. Zhang
has been the director of Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology
Development Company Limited (A 55 B0 51 88 2 48 48 Bl A 35 B
f2 7~ 7)), a wholly own subsidiary of the Company. She is also
the director of Distance Education College of Beijing University of
Chinese Medicine (1t ;= A &8 %2 K 2= 2205 2 [3), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Ms. Zhang does not hold any position with the Company and its
subsidiaries and she does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies nor has any other major appointment or qualification in
the last three years.

Mr. Zheng Zhijing (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 57, was appointed as
executive director of the Company on 16 May 2017.

Mr. Zheng obtained Economics Law degree from Beijing College
Finance and Commerce (1t 781 & £f5). Mr. Zheng has extensive
experience in the management field. Mr. Zheng does not hold any
position with the Company and its subsidiaries and he does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies nor has any other
major appointment or qualification in the last three years.
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REXR EENRSREEAEBRE

Ms. Lin Yan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 37, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 16 May 2017.

Ms. Lin graduated from Finance and Accounting of Fujian Normal
University (& Z8M&5 A 2. Ms. Lin has extensive experience in the
finance, accounting and management field. Ms. Lin does not hold
any position with the Company and its subsidiaries and she does
not hold any directorship in other listed companies nor has any
other major appointment or qualification in the last three years.

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui (“Ms. Wong”), aged 31, was appointed as
executive director of the Company on 31 August 2017.

Ms. Wong obtained a Master of Corporate Communication degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of
Advertising degree from Renmin University of China. Ms. Wong
has been working in the Corporate Banking Division of China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited since September
2014. Prior to that, she worked in financial institutions, assisting
in human resources duties and providing financial services and
solutions to clients. Ms. Wong has not held directorships in the last
three years in public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Lu Xiaowei (“Ms. Lu"), aged 50, was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company on 11
December 2017.

Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor of medicine degree from Harbin
Medical University, majoring in nursing. Ms. Lu has been the head
of the teaching material department and the home care department
of Beijing Baocare Yangyi Technology Co., Ltd. (At 5 £ J3 = i F}
A5 FRZ> 7)) since April 2013. Prior to that, she has been engaged
in clinical nursing for nearly 30 years since 1987 and has extensive
experience in clinical medicine and clinical nursing. She had acted
as a head nurse for 13 years and has strong management skills.
She obtained the National Advanced Nutritionist qualification
in September 2010. During the work at Beijing Baocare Yangyi
Technology Co., Ltd., she, together with colleagues, complied
elderly care teaching materials and an ISO 9001 quality certification
manual for the quality management of elderly care institutions,
and developed and established a large professional elderly care
platform with independent intellectual property rights — “BAOCARE
Elderly Care System”. She was also involved in an elderly self-care
ability rating assessment organised by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the PRC. Ms. Lu has not held directorships in the last three
years in public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Mr. Tang Jiuda (“Mr. Tang”), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director, member of the audit
committee and member of the remuneration committee of the
Company on 17 April 2018. He was appointed as the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company with effect from 8 May 2019.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Renmin
University of China in 1994 and a master’s degree in management
from Central University of Finance and Economics in 2014. He
is currently a senior accountant, Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Public Valuer of the PRC. Mr. Tang has been engaged in
research of state-owned assets and capital market management
for 25 years and has accumulated extensive experience in
finance management, investment management, capital operation,
corporate legal person structure governance and shareholding
reform and listing. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Tang worked at Haidian
District Finance Bureau of Beijing Municipality and Haidian District
State-owned Assets Administration Bureau of Beijing Municipality,
responsible for financial budgeting and reporting, basic state-
owned assets administration and registration of ownership and
verification of assets of enterprises not within the scope of budgets
in Haidian District, Beijing. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Tang worked at
the finance department of the State-owned Assets Administration
Bureau under the State Council of the PRC, serving successively
as deputy principal staff member and principal staff member of the
general section, the local section and the asset appraisal centre.
From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Tang joined Beijing Zhaokun Assets
Appraisal Firm Co., Ltd. (b kiR & EF A E B A AR A F) as
deputy general manager and chief valuer. Mr. Tang has been a
senior accountant at Beijing Zhongshui Xincheng Accounting Firm
dE = § (= 5 @ 51 Al = 5 A7) and Beijing Zhongkuai Xincheng
Accounting Firm (Ot ;2 # & {5 3 & & 8 = 7 F7) since 2001,
responsible for corporate development planning, strategic research
and finance management. Mr. Tang has not held any directorship
in any public company the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.
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Ms. Yang Qingchun (“Ms. Yang”), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, member of the nomination committee and member of
the remuneration committee of the Company on 2 August 2018.
She was re-designated from the chairman of the audit committee
of the Company to a member of the audit committee with effect
from 8 May 2019.

Ms. Yang obtained a college diploma in industrial enterprise
management from Shaanxi Radio and Television University in July
1991, a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Open College of
the Central Communist Party School in December 1994, and an
advanced professional qualification certificate in financial management
from University of Cambridge in May 2013. Ms. Yang is currently a
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Certified Practising Accountant Australia, a certified intermediate
accountant in the PRC, a certified tax agent in the PRC and a
certified tax planner in the PRC. Ms. Yang has been engaged in
financial work for 28 years and has the ability to engage in financial
management work, domestic and overseas tax planning and financial
risk assessment and review for all kinds of companies. In addition,
Ms. Yang has also accumulated extensive experience in investment,
financing, mergers and acquisitions and listing. From 1991 to 1994,
Ms. Yang worked at state-owned Qinling Electric Appliance Company
under the Aerospace Ministry of the PRC (b B finl 2= fin K 20 B & &=
28 & 22 2 7)), where she was responsible for managing its financial
matters. From 1994 to 2002, Ms. Yang worked at Shenzhen Tianiji
Technical Tracing Co., Ltd. (&IIITh KR EHE A BR A 7)) as financial
manager. Ms. Yang established Shenzhen Saibao Financial Agency
Co., Ltd. (FYTHEZBHERIEAFRR A F]) in 2002 and served as its
authorised representative, responsible for its operation and providing
financial and taxation services to clients. From 2004 to 2007, Ms.
Yang worked at Shenzhen Bohai Registered Tax Agent Co., Ltd. (%3l
SIS EEMESET AR A 7)) as partner, responsible for providing
taxation, accounting and assessment services to clients. Ms. Yang
has been a headquarters partner of Asia-Pacific PengSheng CTA Co.,
Ltd. (SR ARSI HEEM EH5 PR 17 B R 2 A) since 2007, responsible
for its operation and providing tax related services to clients. Ms. Yang
has not held directorships in the last three years in public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Hui (“Ms. Wang”), aged 54, is the deputy chief
executive officer of the Company. She was appointed as an
executive director on 10 July 2008. With effect from 10 June 2010,
Ms. Wang resigned as executive director and has been appointed
as chief executive officer of the Company. On 3 May 2018, she
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the deputy
chief executive officer of the Company.

Ms. Wang holds a Master’s degree in Finance and Investment from
Renmin University of China and a Bachelor’'s degree in Design
of Machine Manufacturing Equipment from Anhui University of
Technology and Science. Ms. Wang has previously worked in an
investment management company, a technology company and
an online education training company as a member of the senior
management. She has extensive experience in strategic planning,
investment management and online education operation. Ms.
Wang is the director of Distance Education College of Beijing
University of Chinese Medicine(dt R B &: A ELR 2B Ef ), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Wang did not hold any directorships in any listed public
company in the last three years.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
E-Information Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) presents
herewith the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 95.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend in
respect of the reporting year (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December 2019
prepared on the basis set out in the note below:
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E-hE —TN\E “E—tE —TRF —Z-1fF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET FHET THET THEL

Revenue REFELEEBIIMA 63,124 57,856 52,757 46,277 45,701
Loss before tax REHELE

BRERIER 95,583 79,013 66,397 140,851 33,187

Loss after tax BRI EE 95,583 79,013 66,397 140,851 33,187

Total assets BEMAE 181,579 250,093 261,366 195,531 227,191

Total liabilities ks 94,845 69,785 58,641 41,956 49,483
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements of property, plant and equipment are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 27 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during
the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 96 and note 28 to the consolidated
financial statement respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any reserve
available for cash distribution (2018: Nil). In accordance with
the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company’s share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Group and the Company did not have any management
services contract for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not have any charitable donations
(2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:
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2019 2018
—E-NEF —2-N\F
Revenue ON
— The largest customer — BAEP n/a T3 A n/a i@ A
— Five largest customers — AREF n/a FiE A n/a i@ A
Cost of goods sold HEER
and services provided RR AR Z A
— The largest services provider — BEARRFGHER 44% 29%
— Five largest services providers — AR HAER 83% 76%

Students are our major customers. It is therefore not applicable to
provide the largest and the five largest customers’ percentages on
our revenue income.
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None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
service providers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Wei

Ms. Zhang Jianxin
Mr. Zheng Zhijing
Ms. Lin Yan

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Lu Xiaowei
Mr. Tang Jiuda
Ms. Yang Qingchun

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers that
all independent non-executive directors are independent to the
Group in accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yuan Wei, Ms. Lin Yan, Mr. Tang Jiuda and
Ms. Lu Xiaowei will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yuan Wei, the executive director, has entered into service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. This service
contract may be terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice to the other party.

Ms. Zhang Jianxin, the executive director, has entered into service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. This service
contract may be terminated by either parties giving not less than
three months’ notice to the other party.

Ms. Yang Qingchun, the independent non-executive director, has
not been appointed for a fixed term of service.

Mr. Tang Jiuda, the independent non-executive director, has not
been appointed for a fixed term of service.

Ms. Lu Xiaowei, the independent non-executive director, has not
been appointed for a fixed term of service.

Mr. Zheng Zhijing, the executive director, has not been appointed
for a fixed term of service.

Ms. Lin Yan, the executive director, has not been appointed for a
fixed term of service.

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui, the executive director, has not been appointed
for a fixed term of service.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including its Directors,
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits include insurance and medical cover
as well as share option scheme. Details of share option scheme
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The determination of remuneration of the Directors of the
Company had taken into consideration of their expertise and job
specifications.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 23 May 2011. On 2
July 2019, the Company granted 375,100,000 share options (the
“Options”) to individuals (the “Grantees”) under the Company’s
share option scheme adopted on 23 May 2011. Details of share
option scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions

%

Number of shares or underlying shares held

iR o REERGEE
Percentage of
Name of Directors and Ordinary Shares issued share
chief executive Capacity Share Options Total capital
HE 8T
EESRIBTBRAEHA 54 ZER iR AE et REBDLH
Yuan Wei Beneficial owner - 63,600,000 63,600,000 1.70%
(Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer)
RIZ(BTTEFRITHAEZR) EmEEA
Zhang Jianxin (Executive Director) Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.40%
RE (HITEE) EniBA
Wong Hiu Pui (Executive Director) Beneficial owner 120,000 - 120,000 0.003%
TR HTEF) EmEEA
Zheng Zhijing (Executive Director) Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.27%
HHER(HITESE) EniAA
Lin Yan (Executive Director) Beneficial owner 126,000,000 - 126,000,000 3.36%
MY (H7TEF) EmEEA
Yang Qingchun Beneficial owner 536,000 2,000,000 2,536,000 0.07%
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
BER(E/IFNTESE) EmEEA
Lu Xiaowei Beneficial owner 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 0.08%
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
BB (B IFHTEE) EmEEA
Tang Jiuda Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.05%
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
BRERE (B TIFNTESE) EniBA
Wang Hui Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.13%

(Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
TE(EITTEEE)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in shares, debentures or underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations which was required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares and share options” above and
“Share option scheme” in note 37, at no time during the year was
the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Group or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER
THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as known to any Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

BREXFREEN R_E-NAF+_A=1+—8"
MEARFEEREBTRABRARR LEMEH
EEZ B - EREE SRR D P RB QRIEES M
HIE RO EXVER ST K8 BR A& A1 A M B X Ffr
ZREmIORR ¢+ RORIEES NS &G F£3521578
FCERIBZIRPIFT BT 2 B 2 R SRR + 3
(OIRIEGEM 48 A1 55 4615 H A& AR 1R 7] KB A
Fr 2 s SRR ©

BEROIES22H

BREXTEEREBTHRABRRD RBEE 2 #
i | AR P RES7 [RE ARt & | PR & H) - AN E sk
EEAMBARRFEAREXRBERZHEN T B
EARREFAZEBEAEE R T EMEABE
R A7 MBS A2 ©

BREESZRBERIATEREZ
BEERTERR

RZB-NF+ZA=1+—H BARREFEHEE
TTBABRA U TAL(RRREZEREZTHA
BHRINFAREEZ LAERPIEXVEBFE2R37 H
BT WELBTARER 7 & IE GPIE3361KETF
ZE ez ARBR KRR 2 SRR
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Long position in shares or underlying shares

of the Company

Number of shares
or underlying

RARXTRGHEBERED 2FR

Percentage of
issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held capital
FrsRe= HERIT

REREHE 514 HREROEE BREBDLH

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited (note 1) Investment manager 286,256,000 7.63%

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited (Fif#¥1) &R

Liu Yang (notes 1 and 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 286,256,000 7.63%

25 (fifaH1 K%2) NS NE A L

Atlantis Investment Management (Hong Investment manager 286,256,000 7.63%
Kong) Limited (note 1)

Atlantis Investment Management (Hong #8438
Kong) Limited (Fi5E1)

Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland)  Investment manager 126,256,000 3.37%
Limited (note 1)

Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland) &8 4538
Limited (Pf5E1)

Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman)  Investment manager 160,000,000 4.27%
Ltd. (note 2)

Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) & #5318
Ltd. (Fff5E2)

China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation Interest of a controlled corporation 524,952,000 13.99%
(note 3)

P EMAMET S QA (FIES) NEENNE X

China Shipbuilding Capital Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner and interest of a 524,952,000 13.99%

controlled corporation

RN E AGR AR (FIEE3) BnlEB AN AR 2

Summit Blue Limited (note 4) Beneficial owner 337,477,188 9.0%

Summit Blue Limited(Ff3%4) EniB A

Wang Peng (note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation 337,477,188 9.0%

FHe(HsE4)

REEEE 2 s
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Notes:1. According to the disclosure of interests notices filed by
each of Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited,
Atlantis Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Atlantis (Hong Kong)”) and Atlantis Investment Management
(Ireland) Limited (“Atlantis (Ireland)”) were disclosed as having
interest in 286,256,000 shares and 126,256,000 shares
of the Company respectively. Atlantis (Hong Kong) and
Atlantis (Ireland) are indirect wholly-owned and direct wholly-
owned by Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
respectively. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital
Holdings Limited are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Atlantis (Hong Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland).

2. According to the disclosure of interests notices filed by
Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd, Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd was disclosed as having
interest in 160,000,000 shares of the Company and was
wholly owned by Ms. Liu Yang. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd.

3. China Shipbuilding Capital Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation. China
Shipbuilding Capital Limited was the beneficial owner of
493,088,000 shares of the Company and also held 60%
shareholding in CSIC Investment One Limited, a company
which was the beneficial owner of 31,864,000 shares of the
Company.

4. According to the disclosure of interests notices filed by
Summit Blue Limited and Mr. Wang Peng, Summit Blue
Limited held 337,477,188 shares of the Company and Mr.
Wang Peng held 70% shareholding in Summit Blue Limited.
Therefore, Mr. Wang Peng is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Summit Blue Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MiEE 1. R 3R 2 &£ & L+ KAtlantis Capital Holdings
Limited + Atlantis Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited([ Atlantis (Hong Kong)J)
K Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland)
Limited ([ Atlantis (reland) ) & B F7 12 32 4 & B
BEA 5 Rl #EE R AR R F1286,256,000/% K
126,256,000 % 17 # 7 4 # 21 - Atlantis (Hong
Kong) K Atlantis (reland)? 5l B8 2 & & £ &
Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited# 2 & %4 &
HE2AHAE o 8R4 FAtantis Capitalif 17
A Atlantis (Hong Kong) & Atlantis (Ireland)FfT 45
MR R o

2. 1R #ERverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Ltdffr
IRHER RSN Riverwood Asset Management
(Cayman) Lid# #& 7 72X A B]160,000,0008% A%
DhEEEERARRAZLI2ERENBA
Ale J itk 2R 22 £ 347 73 HRiverwood Asset
Management (Cayman) LdFT5 A5 A A2

3. HEMMEAERATATEMMEIEE
RAIZZEMBAR - FEMMERGRAF
A 7K A R)493,088,0000% it 15 2 BB A
JRFEFBCSIC Investment One Limited (/& 728 A &)
31,864,000/ /% (0 2 Bz A A ) 2 60%HE

4. 184ESummit Blue Limited 2 E i 45 4= Fr iR 2 £
FE 25 BR B2 4 AN - Summit Blue Limitedis B 248 2
7]337,477,188/% & 17 K& F M5 5& A 5 & Summit
Blue Limited,2 70%R% & « FE It - IRIEZEH REE
161 T B85 55 A 3 48 /& HASummit Blue Limited BT
FBOROPEAER

B EXFEEEN R-E-AF+=A=+—8"
EFUTNBEMEMA (AR AEFREBTH
ABB SN B R AR 0 7 (AR 1
BH DN EXVEE2 RS R ATHER
BRANRBES RS S0 HER 2 B R
ST -
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INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, neither the Directors nor the
substantial shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest in business that competes, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited had been appointed
as the auditor of the Company following the resignation of GI CPA
Limited with effect from 10 January 2020. GI CPA Limited resigned
as auditor of the Company due to the insufficient work force in
their audit team to continue to conduct their audit for a listed entity
and McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were appointed to
fill the casual vacancy.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited retires and a resolution

for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Yuan Wei
Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 March 2020

PR 2 R

REBEER AANEEAEERRRESEEY
B A A A (] SR S B T R 8
52 R

BEMRER

MEBRBEZEREH ZHFBHREETHERE
B5E38 ©

BB

BERSAMEBMARARERER K5 (HE)S
AHENEBAER AT CERERLRRIREE - B
ToEF-ATHRER -BREMEBMARA
AIRERBERAF IRAEE R — K LT EBR
REBEZITELERST(BE)STMEEMER QA
LT ARM RS2

B (BFR)GMEBMARAREHEER AT
BREERRAFAS HIRERAR BERF(F
)BT EEAMAR DR AN A B EETD -
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and believes that good corporate
governance can (i) enhance management effectiveness and
efficiency; (i) increase the transparency of the Company; (iii)
enhance risk management and internal control of the Company
and (iv) safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange which sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, the provisions of the Code (the “Code Provisions”)
and the recommended best practices, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the Code during the year ended 31 December 2019, with the
exception of deviation set out below.

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Following the step down of Mr. Chen
Hong from the office of chairman and an executive director of the
Company on 14 February 2014, the Company has not appointed
chairman, and the roles and functions of the chairman have been
performed by all the executive directors collectively.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
while all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. During the year, all independent
non-executive director is not appointed for a specific term of
service. Since each of the independent non-executive directors is
subject to rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company, as
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to serve the purpose of the Code Provision A.4.1 of the
Code.

RRRBOEFRKREZEEE R BREEEEE
DRBE(IRTTE A E MK ()RR AR R ZEHR

mR

€ (iWEARRE) 2EBEENAIPET 0 MVIR
P I BR HEAN N B 2 R BRI 5 o

iR ERTA

IRIRHE 22 PTGEM _E T AR RIFH 8- 16P7 81 2 (R EVA T
AR Dz BE AR ER ZRA STRIEX
(TFANERX DA RRERZZE R REE-T—LF
TZA=t—ALFEARBEARAFETTH
Ptz 280~ BIMES - HE T XAV IR BRI LR 51

RIEST AR SEA 2116 £ R EITHRARESR TR
7 AR — ARKFRE - RREEEN T~
F-RATOHEBEARREFRRATESFRBGER K
RAWARZREEF MEFEZAEMBEEHZEBANT
EEHAET

RIESFEIZ TG FALE SERITES AR R
EEBRMEERET MAAESEV BT -FHER
F—IR-FAN FIEBIFNTEESCZELERET
RIS HARR - RAIZR AR RIMEBERMA) - B
FRTESEANREBFAS FHERTRERE
T Bt AR ER BRI SR ER TR 2 5F
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Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and non-executive director should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Ms. Yang Qingchun, Mr. Tang Jiuda and Ms. Lu Xiaowei, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company were unable
to attend an annual general meeting of the Company held on 26
June 2019 and extraordinary general meetings of the Company
held on 21 January 2019 and 25 March 2019 due to their
respective commitments elsewhere. The Company will endeavour
to arrange the future general meetings with the presence of the
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors
s0 as to fulfill the requirement of Code Provision A.6.7.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has adopted a code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard as set out in the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MEETING

Board Composition

The Board of Directors currently comprises five executive directors,
namely Mr. Yuan Wei, Ms. Zhang Jianxin, Mr. Zheng Zhijing,
Ms. Lin Yan and Ms. Wong Hiu Pui and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. Yang Qingchun, Mr. Tang Jiuda
and Ms. Lu Xiaowei. The Board is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. It focuses on directing the corporate
strategies and supervising the business, significant affairs and daily
operation of the Group. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.

RIBESTANMESCEAL TR B IENITE B RIEFNIT
EEREERREAE HRENDERBRAENTHE-
RRAGBURTEESHEEFELT HRELTERE
BESAZTEARARESEB 2EBMARLEARARFR
TE-NFAAZTARBRTIREBEFTFRE UK
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A TR BRITZRERFIRE - NRARHEER I LHE
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TERTE A ST RHESCEEAB.TIR ZIRATE ©
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Following the step down of Mr. Chen Hong from the office of
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company on 14
February 2014, the Company has not appointed chairman, and
the roles and functions of the chairman have been performed by all
the executive directors collectively. The Board provide the Group
with strategic direction and ensure its effectiveness in a timely
manner. Whereas Mr. Yuan Wei, who was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 3 May 2018, and Ms. Wang
Hui, who was re-designated from the chief executive officer of the
Company to the deputy chief executive officer of the Company on
3 May 2018, are responsible for the strategic planning of its various
business units, and day-to-day management of its operation.

Currently three independent non-executive director is not
appointed for a specific term of service. Since each of the
independent non-executive directors is subject to rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company, as such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the
purpose of the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code.

REREEER_ZE—NF-_A+MNAGTARAE
ERATESBIEE  ARRWAEZEER MERE
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Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly. During the year ended 31 December
2019, there were 42 board meetings and 3 general meetings
held to discuss the overall strategy, the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to approve important matters
such as the annual results, quarterly results, interim results and
dividends, the Group’s businesses and investments, etc. The
attendance of each director at the board meetings and general
meeting are set out as follows:

EEEERRRRAE

EFerETER REE_T-AF+=-A
=+ BIFE ARABETL2RESTEEH 3K
BRIRARE AR B RRE AEEZ2ENTBRE
WHUEINFERAE - FEEE  PRREANRE A%
BzEBRRESFEREH - SESHREFEEH
KIRRA G 2 s &I T -

Attendance of Attendance of
Board Meeting General Meeting

EZSgRHELE BRER A HiFE RO 8%

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuan Wei RIESRE
Ms. Zhang Jianxin SRR T
Mr. Zheng Zhijing AR A
Ms. Lin Yan Mt Zz+
Ms. Wong Hiu Pui TR Z L

Independent Non-Executive Directors BN FHITEE

Ms. Yang Qingchun BEEZT
Mr. Tang Jiuda ZRERE
Ms. Lu Xiaowei iRt

The company secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

42/42 3/3
37/42 0/3

4/42 0/3
31/42 0/3
14/42 0/3
39/42 0/3
39/42 0/3
39/42 0/3

REAMEBECELREMBEZTEERNRE TR
BEEERLERCE ERLBZVIRARER SR

MEEERAIREEER -
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The executive directors and senior management meet regularly to
review company business matters and escalate the matters to the
board meeting for further discussion if necessary. The Board and
the Directors can seek independent professional advice whenever
necessary at the Company’s expenses. Furthermore, they can
have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are duly complied with and
advising the Board on corporate governance and compliance
matters.

In accordance to the Board’s current practice and Code Provision
A.1.7 of the Code, any material transaction involving a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director will be
considered and dealt with by the Board by a duly convened
Board meeting. It also requires the directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have
a material interest.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

In Compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company now has three independent
non-executive directors with two of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Currently it has complied with the relevant
Rules. All independent non-executive director is not appointed for
a fixed term of service.

The Company has, through the nomination committee of
the Board, reviewed the independence of, and received an
appointment and annual confirmation of independence from, each
of the independent non-executive directors, and considers all the
independent non-executive directors independent in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

HTEENEREEABEHEERNARAER
EEUNLERRER AU EEREEEZC SR
FE—Tm BTG NEFARFTERSIELE
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REBEZEFEEAEG LTRZTAGRXFALTER:
BREBRRIEZZNBZARZENERR S
HEFENIAARZESEER LBANEE -8
BREEREREETNIERSHEEMBMEAL
BRBEEARD X HHREREL T ASEETE
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Delegation to Board Committee and
Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business development,
leadership, management and control of the Group and is
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing,
supervising and monitoring the Group’s affairs. It has established
three committees, namely the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. All of the committees have
written terms of reference in accordance with the Code. More
details of these committees are set out in separate sections of this
report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executive directors, chief executive officer (“CEQ”) and deputy chief
executive officer to facilitate the efficient day to day management
of the Group’s business. In addition, the Board delegates to the
remuneration committee authorities to determine remuneration for
executive directors and members of senior management.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as Directors and of the business and activities of the Group.
Directors receive regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments to the Group’s business and to environments
in which the Group operates, as well as their responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, the duties and responsibilities of the
Directors and the business of the Group in the following manner:

BE_T-NF+_A=T—BULFE BEFFEBNU
THRA2EAMEESEZRANE EFZRGHE
BEMASEEB 2 SEEERREH

Training received (Yes/No)
BEZEI(RB)

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Yuan Wei RESLE

Ms. Zhang Jianxin R

Mr. Zheng Zhijing BEREE

Ms. Lin Yan M2+

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui THRALL
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Ms. Yang Qingchun BEETL

Mr. Tang Jiuda BRERAE

Ms. Lu Xiaowei EEfZT

Training received included:

A attending internal/external briefing/seminar session in relation
to corporate governance; or

B reading materials in relation to regulatory update

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 26
November 2001 with written terms of reference for the purpose of
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control procedures in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. The committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Jiuda (the chairman of the
committee), Ms. Yang Qingchun and Ms. Lu Xiaowei.

Yes &
Yes &
Yes &
Yes &
Yes &

Yes &
Yes &
Yes &

B

B

A 2EMEEERNAE INIERE
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B EEAMATEEHOH

EEXZET
BREES
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“tRERIEZEZES UHFIEEBERE A
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The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, to review
the audit plan, audit findings and independence of the auditors
of the Company, to review the Group’s financial information and
financial statements, annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports, and to provide advice and recommendation thereon to the
Board.

The Board also delegated certain corporate governance functions
to the audit committee, including the review and monitoring of
(@) the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board; (b) the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (c) the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct
of the Group applicable to employees and Directors; and (g) the
Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audit committee
held 7 meetings to approve the nature and scope of the statutory
audits, and review the annual, interim, quarterly consolidated
financial statements of the Group, and details of the attendance of
each member of the committee are set out as follows:

BREZBEZIBRERRNREBAKEZHE
HEF RREEMABEIERS W2
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Committee Members Attendance
ERZEEEHE HFE RR 8%
Ms. Yang Qingchun (re-designated from the chairman of the  #HEHERT(BE=Z—NFHA/\HEMH

audit committee to a member with effect from 8 May 2019)  BEZEES X FHAEAKE) 7/7
Mr. Tang Jiuda (re-designated from a member of the audit BRERE(BEZE-NFRA/\HEH

committee to chairman with effect from 8 May 2019) ERLZEeNERTRER) 7/7
Ms. Lu Xiaowei EEfzT 7/7
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The minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. The draft and final versions of the minutes
are circulated to all committee members for their comments and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the audit
committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

The Company’s annual audited results for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 23 March 2005
with major functions of (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group; (i) determining the
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
of the Group; and (iii) reviewing and approving the performance-
based remuneration. The remuneration committee’s terms of
reference are generally aligned with the requirement of Code
Provision B.1.2.

The remuneration committee of the Company is currently chaired
by Mr. Yuan Wei. Other members include Ms. Yang Qingchun and
Mr. Tang Jiuda. The majority of the members of the remuneration
committee are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1 meeting of the
remuneration committee was held. All of the members of the
remuneration committee, at the time being, attended the meeting.
The Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management was discussed in the meeting and no changes on
the policy were recommended by the remuneration committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the nomination committee on 23
March 2012 with major functions of (i) to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; and (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and
the CEO.

The nomination committee of the Company is currently chaired
by Mr. Yuan Wei. Other members include Ms. Yang Qingchun and
Ms. Lu Xiaowei. The majority of the members of the nomination
committee are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1 meeting of
the nomination committee was held. All the members of the
nomination committee, at the time being, attended the meeting to
perform the aforesaid functions.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of
directors is good for corporate governance and is committed:

° To attract and retain candidate(s) for Board with a
combination of competencies from the widest possible pool
of available talent.

° To maintain a Board with diversity perspectives at all levels,

in particular, those are aligning with the Company’s strategy
and objectives.
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° To assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board and,
where applicable, senior management prepared for Board
positions under the succession planning of the Company
and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.

° To ensure that the selection and nomination of Board
positions are appropriately structured so that a diverse range
of candidates can be considered.

° To set up appropriate procedures for development of a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced
senior management that would be prepared for Board
positions.

° To ensure that changes to the Board’s composition can be
managed without undue disruption.

The Nomination Committee will review annually the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the
nomination of directors (as applicable), Board diversity has to be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
the following:

o Gender

° Age

° Cultural and educational background

° Professional qualifications

° Skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy as appropriate
and recommend revisions, if any, to the Board for consideration
and approval.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of directors of the Company to the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Without prejudice to the
authority and duties of the Nomination Committee as set out in
its terms of reference, the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of directors of the Company rests with the entire
Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered:

° Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

° Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

° Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.
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Nomination process

@)

Appointment of New Director

U

(i)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the

Board should make recommendation to shareholders in

respect of the proposed election of director at the general

meeting.
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(b)  Re-election of Director at General Meeting

0] The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and this
Policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company adopt the
policy that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value.

The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.
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The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of
the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below. The Board shall also
take into account the following factors of the Company and its
subsidiaries when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

° financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;

° future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of shareholders;

° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year
or period:

° interim dividend;

° final dividend;

° special dividend; and

° any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be
forfeited and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will review this Policy as appropriate from time to time.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the audit service provided by the auditor of
the Group to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
was mutually agreed in view of the scope of services, amounting
to HK$600,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective internal control system
to safeguard the Group’ assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, and to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company (collectively “internal controls”).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
conducted a review, which covered the major control procedures
in areas of financial and operations of the Company on the
internal control system of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND
PROFESSIONAL CODE OF CONDUCTS

The Group puts high standards on business ethics and
professional conducts expected of all employees. Employees are
briefed regularly on the code of ethics and on the conducts of
keeping confidentiality of the information of business partners and
the Group. Briefings on the code of ethics and on the conducts
are held for new employees during orientation sessions.

The Group also adopts good employment standards of non-
discrimination policy and fair compensation scheme.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors for preparing the financial
statements and the auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements are set out in the auditor’s report contained in
this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) may be convened by the
Board on a written requisition of any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting of
the Company. The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) of the Company.

Enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect
of their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

There is no provision for shareholders to propose resolutions at
a general meeting under the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
However, shareholders can follow the above procedure and
request to convene an EGM.

Procedures for nominating a new director

(i) If a shareholder wish to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a notice at the Company’s
head office at Unit 2609-10, 26th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, No. 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (Attention to the Board of Directors and the company
secretary) or the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong;
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(i)  The notice must (i) include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50 (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (i) be signed by the shareholder concerned and
signed also by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information;

(i)  Where the notice is submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election,
the period for lodgment of the notice shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. In any case, the minimum length of the
period during which any notice to be given shall be at least
seven days;

(iv)  In order to allow the shareholders sufficient time to receive
and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as
a director of the Company, shareholders are encouraged to
submit and lodge the notice as early as practicable.

Articles of Association

There was no change to the Articles of Association to the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 21 January 2019, the special resolution was not passed at the
EGM in relation to adopt the Company’s new memorandum and
articles of association in substitution for and to the exclusion of the
existing memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
For detailed information regarding the special resolution, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December
2018 and 21 January 2019.

On 25 March 2019, the special resolution was not passed at the
EGM in relation to adopt the Company’s new memorandum and
articles of association in substitution for and to the exclusion of the
existing memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
For detailed information regarding special resolution, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 20 February 2019 and
25 March 2019.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update the latest business development and financial
performance including the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, the publish and posting of notices, announcements
and circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in a
timely manner in order to maintain a high level of transparency, and
to ensure there is no selective disclosure of inside information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Report

Overview

This Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report (the
“Report”) of China E-Information Technology Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 covers environmental and social subject areas in accordance
with the requirements of Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide stated in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Scope of the Report

The Report endeavours to present a balanced representation of
the Group’s environmental and social performance and covers the
entire operations of all entities in the Group.

The content of the Report is defined through a process to
determine ESG management approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives relating to the Group’s operations, to describe our
management, measurement and monitoring system employed
to implement ESG strategy, and to disclose our key policies,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, our performance,
and key performance indicators (“KPIs”).

Approved by the board of directors

The board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. The board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management is in place. The
Report was approved by the board on 31 March 2020.
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Environmental and Social Subject Areas of
the Group

About the Group

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet
platform for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs. The Group
mainly operates in the PRC and Hong Kong. Particulars of the
Group’s principal entities are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Strategy

Although the Group does not operate in an environmentally
sensitive business, we consider that our operations still have
an impact on the environment and believe that addressing
environmental issues is a collective responsibility shared by every
member of the community.

The Group has been committed to become an environment-
friendly enterprise to promote environmental protection. We have
been actively strengthened the energy-saving in order to reduce
emission.

We are committed to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, such as recruitment, compensation
and benefits and staff promotion. We believe that each individual
has his/her unique strengths and we therefore have comprehensive
equal employment opportunities policies in place that protect
potential and existing employees from being discriminated because
of their backgrounds, gender, age, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, race or religion.

Our Group considers our staffs as the most valuable asset. Without
their continued contribution, we will not be able to operate. It is
therefore our top priority to make sure that our employees work in
a fair, safe and pleasant environment.
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We prohibit any form of corruption or malpractice such as bribery,
money laundering, extortion and fraud. The Group adopts a zero-
tolerance policy on bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
any matters of genuine concern are to be thoroughly investigated
and actions will be taken accordingly.

The Group always keep in mind the social responsibility during the
Group’s operation. Hence, the Group always encourage the staffs
to participate in various community charitable activities.

Our strategy is to fulfil the Group’s environmental and social

responsibilities through achieving environmental and social
objectives during daily operations.

Objectives

We integrate environmental and social considerations into the
Group’s business objectives to achieve:

Environmental objectives:

° Achieve the balance between business growth and
environmental protection by improving the operations and
practices as well as encouraging the employees to adopt
environmentally responsible behaviour in workplace; and

° Minimise use and maximise reuse of resources and energy

Social objectives:

° Attract and retain the best people by creating a supportive
and quality workplace; and

° Care about employees’ welfare and satisfaction by

encouraging work-life balance and monitoring and improving
employees’ satisfaction
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Approach

Monitored by the board of directors, the Group is executing
its environmental and social strategy and achieving its related
objectives through a series of actions and commitments:

° Comply with environmental and social laws and regulations;
and

° Disclose KPIs as measurement of actual results
Environmental and social management system comprises:

° Compliance with environmental and social laws and
regulations; and

° Reporting and disclosure of our performance and KPls

Measures for the achievement of environmental and social
objectives are:

° Data collection, calculation, and disclosure of KPIs

The implementation of environmental and social strategies,
management of environmental activities, and measurement of
achieving environmental and social objectives are monitored by
dedicated managerial staff members and finally by the board for its
overall ESG responsibility.

Communication with stakeholders

The Company holds shareholders’ meetings each year to
provide a platform for the Board and Shareholders to exchange
views. In addition, in order to maintain close relationship with
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders, the Company
maintains communication with the stakeholders from time to
time through visits, conference calls, corporate e-mails and other
channels to listen to their views and needs. The Company’s overall
performance is also reported each year to investors through the
annual report.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
our environmental and social strategy, defining our objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. Our key
stakeholders include customers, suppliers, business allies,
employees, management and shareholders. We have discussed
or communicated with stakeholders to understand their views and
respond to their needs and expectations, evaluated and prioritised
their inputs to improve our performance, and finally strived to
provide value to our stakeholders, community and the public as a
whole.

Based on the stakeholder engagement, we identified issues with
significant environmental and social impact and issues concerning
stakeholders. The results of materiality assessment prioritised
stakeholder inputs and made us focused on the material aspects
for actions, performance, achievements and reporting. We present
below the relevant and required disclosure.

General Disclosure and KPIs

A. Environmental

The Group recognises the importance of continuous improvement
in protecting the natural environment. We are committed to
minimising the adverse impact on the environment.

Aspect A1: Emissions

Emissions refer to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. Emissions disclosed as KPIs are calculated
based on the consumption data collected and applicable emission
factors.
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Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants
regulated under national laws and regulations. Greenhouse
gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

- Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Vehicles

The Group encourages employees to consider
environmental impact in their commuting decisions to
reduce air and greenhouse gas emissions. Employees
are reminded to take public transportation as often
as possible and select fuel-efficient vehicles. When
employees are driving, they are advised to use air-
conditioning only when it is necessary.

KPI A1.1 Emissions from vehicles
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B e Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ cEEEBERE
ENHERERZE -

BIRRENMIEIEAL1VTEH Y

2019 2018

—g-nE —FN\F

Types of emissions (9) (9
B Rl (%) (%)
NO pE=l e 11,385 6,532
SO meaty 277 156
Particulate Matter (“PM”) FER (TPM]) 853 499
Hydrocarbons (‘HC”) frata([HCT) 300 375
Carbon Monoxide (“CO”) —&btx([COl) 2,720 3,400

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas ("GHG’) emissions in total

GHG emissions in total are 170 tonnes (2018: 166
tonnes) for the year ended 31 December 2019, which
includes scope 1, scope 2, and scope 3 emissions as
disclosed below.
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KPI A1.2 Scope 1 - Direct emissions from operations

B MISEA1 20 E — — K

that are owned or controlled by the Group BERES ZERB 2 BEEHFRY
2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF
Main categories of Scope 1 emissions:
HE SRz EE2ER
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources
BEREBRREE ZREREBHERY
Types of emissions (kg) (ko)
BE Rl (F=) (F53)
Carbon Dioxide (“CO,”) Z&/blR([CO,Y) 45,908 26,832
Methane (“CH,”) B ([CH, ) 104 62
Nitrous Oxide (“N,O”) a1 ER(IN,0]) 6,478 3,684
Total GHG emissions REREEYNE 52,490 30,578

Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Electricity

Electricity consumption of the Group is a major part
of its greenhouse gas emissions. Various electricity-
saving policies have been established to reduce the
electricity consumption by the Group. It is required
for proper maintenance of electricity devices to avoid
electricity leakage. Air-conditioning is required to be set
no lower than 25°C in summer.
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KPI A1.2 Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions
resulting from the generation of purchased or
acquired electricity within the Group

BARAEIERA1.26 [E — — KX E B KB
ENEBEZENELZREREEEMY

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F
Main sources of Scope 2 emissions: Electricity purchased from
power companies
HE_HHY2ETERER  REHNQAABEZE
Types of emissions (kg) (ka)
BRI (F3) (F7)
CO, equivalent emission CO,E = HEM 41,208 58,172
Total GHG emissions BEREEYNE 41,208 58,172

Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Paper Waste
Disposed at Landfills

Paper consumption is also an environmental concern
in our daily operations. Internally, we have implemented
a number of measures to reduce office paper use and
promote the reuse of paper. For example, in order to
address indirect emissions relating to paper waste
deposited at landfills, we encourage staff to duplex
printing; reuse of single-side used paper; avoid printing
out of short e-mails; adjust the margins and font size
of documents so as to optimise the use of paper and
reduce paper printing by conducting e-filing, etc.

KEHEREERER CHZEAEREY
i

MEOERMERMABELEPNRRER
e TP EARPRIZ B i - AR
WMAREREERRNBRNA Pl &
B 3 3 T8 1 B I [ MY R AR 2 AR
EER BB E TEmITE B
REECRAR  @RITHNEEER
ABNAEH BB R TR A/ B
SRAE A R 33 1B R T SR A AR E -

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 65



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

66

Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Business
Travel by Employees

The Group understands long-distance transportation
in business trips increases energy consumption,
which can cause the increase of carbon emissions.
Therefore, the Group reduces travel or avoids meetings
that require long-distance travel as much as possible
through telephone conference, e-mail, courier and
other means of communication.

KPI A1.2 Scope 3 - All other indirect emissions
that occur outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions

KB REEREBIRITZFHERE RPN

REE T RABRERT B MERHE
- (T BB BEEIE A0 - F It - AN&
EiRAERERE ETEMF RERKE
BN ABA R IRITHB R AR
BIRTTZ &% °

A 52 48 M 15 RA1.280 (B = — K 55 (B L S
EEZIBERMEEHFERY  BiF LFR
IY:Z3:¢7

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Activities from which indirect GHG emissions arise:
EEEBEAERBHRYZEEHR ¢
° Paper waste disposed at
landfills
o NEEEEEZER
Type of emissions (kg) (kg)
BER 2 5l (=) (F3=)
CO, equivalent emissions CO, & = HEM 300 a72
° Business air travel by employees
e (EEBBMZERT
Type of emissions (kg) (ko)
BBl (F5=) (F3=)
CO, equivalent emissions CO, & = HEM 75,835 75,896
Total GHG emissions RERBAYNE 76,135 76,868
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Discharges into Water and Land

The Group requires that discharges, if any, into water and
land must comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Generation of Hazardous Waste and
Non-hazardous Waste

- Hazardous Waste

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations. Hazardous wastes are required to be
separated and recorded for collection. No significant
hazardous waste was generated in view of the Group’s
business nature.

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced

There was no significant hazardous waste generated
in view of the Group’s business nature.

- Non-hazardous Waste
We adopt responsible waste management practices

including avoidance of waste, source reduction, reuse,
recycling and responsible disposal.
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KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced

FREAMIECAATELEERRZY 2
#a

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)
(M) (WE)
Non-hazardous waste produced — FTEAEEZEEY) —HEIR
Landfill or Incineration 1t 2 1

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate

emissions and results achieved.

In accordance with policies stated above for the
reduction of air and greenhouse gas emissions
from production and vehicles, the Group adopts
the following measures: control the numbers of
vehicles owned by the Group; control the frequency
of employees not to take public transportation for
local business commuting; and control the volume
of business travel by employees. We consider such
measures had been achieved for the year ended 31
December 2019.

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and

non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved.

Non-hazardous wastes are sent for landfill or
incineration. In accordance with policies stated above
for the reduction of non-hazardous wastes, the Group
adopts the following measures: control the commercial
wastes generated by employees; control the waste
of papers. We consider such measures had been
achieved for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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e Compliance with Relevant Laws and e BIFHAKEEEEEAFEZIEHE
Regulations that Have a Significant EERRG
Impact on the Group
For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no HE T NF+-_A=+—"HILFE &
confirmed non-compliance in relation to air and greenhouse RBEERERNEEREHN - m/KEHETA
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and NEEREBREVRBEREM 2 NEHE -
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources B HA2: &R E A

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources, including REBRABHYEBRER(BIEGERNK) THREER
energy and water is one of the important aspects to protect the BZEEFEZ—-

environment.

e Efficient Use of Energy ®

The Group established policies and procedures to reduce
energy consumption in the office, it is suggested to switch
off computers, printers, machines and other electronic
devices after office hours or when leaving the workplace to
reduce power consumption.

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total

Direct energy consumption by type

RER Bz EREREREE

BRERRETR

ARE BB IEBR M AE R AW AR RE - 2
AR BRI TES ISR BN - 17
ETH Ko ELAh B8 7 3% 5 LABRARZN %

BRMAISFA2N LRI B S 2 EER - HE
BRERAEE

2019 2018
—2-nE -2
(kWh in’ 000s) (kWh in"000s)

(AFETFEEH) UUTETEES

Non-renewable fuel consumed FrfESE B AR 197 128
Electricity power B 45 66
Total energy consumed BEIRIBFEE 242 194
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e  Water Consumption

The Group requires employees to reduce water
consumption. We conserve water by checking faucets and
pipes for leaks and adopt water saving appliances.

K

AR EERIR BRIk o BRI B K EE
5B R ERRETRK - AR TR -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total BEAEMIEIZEA2. 28 F kB
2019 2018
—E-NF —EFN\F
(Cubic meter) (Cubic meter)
(S F5K) (32 HK)
Annual water consumed FEMEKE 2,215 2,049

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives

and results achieved

The Group’s ability to use energy efficiently can be revealed
by its intention and measures for the reductions in energy
consumption. The Group’s policies and measures specific to
managing energy use have been stated above. We consider
such policies had been adopted and measures had been
achieved for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural
Resources

Environmental education and advocacy among employees
encourage the adoption of environmentally responsible behaviour
which helps fulfil the Group’s commitment to minimising its adverse
impact on the environment. We encourage our employees to join
external events that promote environmental protection on a regular
basis.
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KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities

BB AR IEEAS N T B RIE R AAREIR

on the environment and natural resources and the actions

ZEAZERCRNEREHZEZTE

taken to manage them

We understand that our performance in respect of emissions,
waste production and disposal, and use of resources impacts
the environment, we endeavour to minimise such impacts, and
communicate our environmental policies, measures, performance,
and achievements to our stakeholders. No significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources were caused in view of the
Group’s business nature. Policies and/or measures adopted in
the year ended 31 December 2019 specific to managing potential
impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources are
mentioned above.

B. Social

The Group focus on building a harmonious relationship with
our employees, customers, suppliers, business allies and
the communities. We are committed to enhance transparent
relationship with external parties including customers, suppliers,
and business allies, and contribute to our community development.

Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group has developed a series of employment policies to
ensure employees are treated in a fair and reasonable manner.
We have established our internal policies in accordance with the
relevant labour laws and regulations related to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination.
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Compensation and Dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and
retain talented staff. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically to ensure consistency with employment market.
Dismissal is required to comply with employment laws
and regulations, and to follow the internal policies and
procedures. The Group has established a labour contract
in accordance with the law. Whether the employer or
the employee terminates the contract during the period
stipulated by the contract, unless the contract specifies
otherwise, appropriate compensation should be made to the
other party within the terms of the contract. Compensation
amounts are determined according to the terms of the
contract.

The Group has established a fair and reasonable
remuneration policy with the principles of fairness, incentive
and legality. Employees’ remuneration packages include
basic salaries and performance-based bonuses which
shall be determined by their qualifications, experience and
prevailing market rates. Apart from the basic remuneration
package, our Group also offers a wide range of benefits
including medical insurance coverage and paid leaves for
sick and marriage in addition to statutory holidays.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group attracts talent through flexible, fair and
transparent recruitment strategy. Recruitment process
includes application for recruitment, description of position,
collection of job applications, interview, selection, approval,
and job offering. Promotion is based on performance and
suitability.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS
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e  Fqual Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group always strives to provide a fair and impartial
working environment where the employees are treated
equally and paid due respect. All employees are assessed
and remunerated based on their ability, job performance and
contribution irrespective of their gender, race, employment
type, age, and geographical region.

e Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations that Have a Significant Impact
on the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance in relation to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for our employees. The Group promise that it
providing an effective and safe working environment for our
employees. We also take the approaches of training and safety
inspection to ensure the interest of our employees.

e Providing a Safe Working Environment

The Group requires entities to establish and document
policies and procedures on safety for employees to follow,
set targets for the safety of employees, monitor the safety
performance against the targets periodically, and report any
safety incidents to management. The Group has equipped its
office with suitable fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers.
Designated staff would conduct inspection from time to time
S0 as to ensure the exit passageway clear and unblocked.
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e  |Work-life Balance

The Group focuses on the balance between life and work
of employees, and organizes activities on a regular basis to
ensure that employees are physically and mentally healthy.

e  Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations that Have a Significant Impact
on the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance in relation to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Group is committed to providing adequate training for our
employees to improve their knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work and for their career development.

e Employee Development

The Group requires employees to attend internal and
external training courses in accordance with departmental
or business unit training plan, including new employee
orientation and employee continuing education to improve
employees’ knowledge and skills for their job positions. The
costs of qualified training courses are borne by the Group.

e Training Activities

The Group strives to provide an environment where our
employees can grow professionally and develop their career
path that meets the long-term growth of our business
simultaneously. Our Group provides continuous on-the-
job training to our employees to enhance their knowledge
and skill. We also encourage our staff to attend courses or
trainings for individual professional development organized
by external entities.
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The Group also provides its directors with regular reading
materials to ensure that they keep abreast of the latest
regulatory requirements, corporate governance practices,
financial information and market trends.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group is committed to preventing child and forced labour in
the workplace.

e Preventing Child and Forced Labour

Our Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us relating
to the prevention of use of child and forced labour. We
do not accept any form of forced labour service. We also
prohibit employing child labour at any working place under
any circumstances. Our Group will inspect applicant’s
documents and qualification strictly during the recruitment
process to ensure that all relevant laws in respect thereof are
complied with.

e  Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations that Have a Significant Impact
on the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance in relation to child and forced
labour.

Operating Practices

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Supply chain management is one of the important areas of our
operation, which includes managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
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RIS - B RERHE

Suppliers are chosen subjecting to screening and evaluation
procedures among the suppliers, based on the quality, service,
delivery, price, and applicable environmental and social
considerations. Also, the Group established supply chain
management policies and procedures, including assessment,
selection, approval, procurement, and performance evaluation.

As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental
issues, the Group will continue to communicate those
environmental issues to our suppliers.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Product responsibility refers to services quality and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided.

e  Services quality

The Group is fully responsible for our products and services.
We believe that student satisfaction is the foundation of our
survival. In order to ensure and maintain high quality services,
the Group provides trainings for employees to familiarize
them with the standard operational procedures.

e  Privacy Matters

The Group is committed to protecting customer data and
privacy information. Training to staff members in this regard
and proper information system security are required.
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e  Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations that Have a Significant Impact
on the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance in relation to services quality and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Our Group is committed to maintain ethics and integrity at the
highest standard in business. We have zero tolerance to corruption
and bribery. All directors and staff must strictly comply with our
Group’s Employee Handbook to prevent any action of bribery and
corruption and they shall also follow relevant rules and guidelines
when any conflict of interests arises. It is our Group’s policy that
no employee is allowed to solicit or accept any advantages from
customer, potential customer, or company business partner. The
types of advantages and interests include but not limited to money,
gift, loan, fee, reward, employment, contract, service and favour.
Our Group has a whistle-blowing policy and we encourage staff to
report any suspected corruption case directly to our Group’s top
management.

e Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations that Have a Significant Impact
on the Group

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
confirmed non-compliance in relation to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

o EBFYHAEBABBEATE ZIHEH
SER RV

HE_Z-NAF+_RA=+—RHILFE AE
HERS KB R IR L E R MRS 2 RIGE 8 I
LEEEZ TEREMN-

BHEB7:RE’S

REBBNRNEERT RIFTRDEBERBERE-
BPYE S NERTRR -MAEEENE T LARR
BrASERERERTTA AP ILERESXE B
A ERAE A NS 8 200 - SR8 ST AR R Bl K38
Sl REBEAKERRK  BETEAER BEEPX
HAREBBHRMEEZRE 2L - i
NEBRIREETRRESE BY BEX e B
B - R A4 BRI B - AKE B ERREEK
ARMEBMETERRAKERS EEEREREIM
WREISF -

o BFHAEBABBEATE ZIHEH
SERR AV

E-F-AF+- A=+ BLFE LE
RAAMIEE PR KERARZTARE
o

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 77



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS - B RERHE

Community

Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group focuses on the surrounding communities and to ensure
the Group’s activities take into consideration of the communities’
interest.

e Community Activities

The Group encourages and supports employees to
volunteer their time to help those who are less fortunate and
advantaged in the community.

e  [Fnvironmental Protection

All employees of the Group are encouraged to participate
in environmental protection activities and raise the
environmental awareness of people in the communities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

To the shareholders of
China E-Information Technology Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
E-Information Technology Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 222,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit
matters we identified are: (i) impairment assessment of investment
in an associate; (ii) impairment of right-of-use assets; and (i)

impairment and recoverability of the Group’s other receivables.

No.

Key Audit Matter
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APl ()RR EERE ¢ R(i) B EH R KRIE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

80

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies
in note 4, significant accounting estimates in note 5 and
the disclosures of investment in an associate in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group holds 49% equity interest in Beijing Youli
Lianxu Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Youli"),
a company established in the PRC and engaged in
e-commerce business in the PRC. This investment is
accounted for as an associate using the equity method
because of the significant influence that comes from its
voting power. Share of loss of the associate amounted
to HK$1,517,000 has been recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
associate incurred a loss in its operation due to
the decreasing of consumer spending and general
economic conditions in the PRC. As a result, the
management performed an impairment test using a
value-in-use model to estimate the recoverable amount
of the investment. The impairment was assessed by
the management based on valuation performed by
an independent company of professional valuer (the
“Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
investment in an associate included:

o Understanding the management’s process for
estimating the recoverable amounts of investment in
an associate;

. Evaluating Valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

° Assessing of the reasonableness of the assumptions,
judgements, valuation techniques and the key inputs
adopted by the Valuer by comparing these estimates
and judgments, e.g. discount rate; and

o Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data provided by management
to the Valuer.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We have identified the impairment of investment in an
associate as a key audit matter because of its signifi-
cance to the consolidated financial statements and
because the Group's assessment of impairment of this
associate is a judgemental process which requires esti-
mates concerning the methods and assumptions to be
applied in determining the value-in-use. The selection of
valuation model, adoption of key assumptions and input
data may be subject to management bias and changes
in these assumptions and input to valuation model may
result in significant financial impact.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(i)

84

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies
in note 4, significant accounting estimates in note 5 and
the disclosures of right-of-use assets in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has right-of-
use assets with carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,843,000, management performed assessment
at the end of the reporting period whether there is any
indication that the right-of-use assets may be impaired.
Should indication of impairment exists, an impairment
assessment will be performed accordingly.

The recoverable amounts of the right-of-use assets are
assessed by value-in-use calculations which are based
on future discounted cash flows on a cash generating
unit basis. Management has concluded that there was
no impairment in respect of the right-of-sue assets as at
31 December 2019. This area is significant to our audit
because of the significance of management judgment
involved in determining the value-in-use prepared based
on future discounted cash flows. For future discounted
cash flows, the judgment focuses on revenue growth
rates, gross/operating margins and discount rates. Al
these factors are with estimation uncertainties and may
impact the results of the impairment assessments.

Our procedures in relation to impairment of right-of-use
assets included:

o Testing the controls and review procedures around
identification of impairment indicators;

° Evaluating the robustness of budgeting process, which
is fundamental basis for the valuations;

° Evaluating management’s methodologies in preparing
impairment models and documented basis for key
assumptions;

o Performing procedures on those cash generating
units where management has identified impairment
indicators; or where the recoverable amount is close to
carrying value;

o Assessing the assumptions contained within the
calculations including growth assumptions, and
implications of industry changes; and

° Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the discount rates adopted in the value in
use calculations using cash flow projection.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(i)

86

impairment and recoverability of the Group s other
receivables

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies
in note 4, significant accounting estimates in note 5 and
the disclosures of other receivables in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment and recoverability of other
receivables as a key audit matter due to it accounted for
approximately 63% of the Group ' s total assets (by value)
and the significant degree of management s judgement
in assessing their expected credit losses (“ECL").

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had other
receivables of approximately HK$104,113,000
(net of allowance for impairment of approximately
HK$65,902,000) under which approximately
HK$86,926,000 are guaranteed by independent third
parties.

In assessing the ECL as well as recoverability of the
other receivables, management applied judgement in
assessing the ECL based on credit risk characteristics
and the likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of debtors, the geographical locations and
industries, and applying ECL rates to the carrying
amount of other receivables. The ECL rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experienced
and were adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of debtors repay the outstanding debts.

Our procedures in relation to impairment and recoverability
of the Group s other receivables included:

. Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the Group's ECL
models by examining the model inputs used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions used in
each of the economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognizing loss
allowances;

o Assessing the financial capability of the guarantors as
to whether they are able to provide such guarantees;
and

o Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the appropriates of ECL models and
relevant inputs.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and
Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and that comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit engagement director

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633

3/F, Winbase Centre,

208 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong
31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income

GEEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+_-_A=+—HL=FE

2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT FEx F&TT

Revenue U & 7 63,124 57,856
Cost of services rendered ARG 2 AN (26,983) (28,892)
Gross profit EX 36,141 28,964
Other income H Az 8 5,582 15,176
Other losses HAthEsiE 9 (3,796) (10)
Administrative expenses THRAX (60,207) 61,519)
Impairment loss on investment in an WA E AR ERTE

associate 19 (27,719) (65,027)
Equity-settled share-based payments AR HE 45 & 2 LARS S 1~ k08 (30,800) -
Finance costs BhE AN 10 (13,267) (10,225)
Share of result of an associate ey NI e (1,517) 3,628
Loss before tax MRELAIE R 11 (95,583) (79,013)
Income tax Frig i 13 - -
Loss for the year REEEIE 11 (95,583) (79,013)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA T A LML AFE (B518)EF) -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIESY SN (104,222) (90,842)
Non-controlling interests IR 8,639 11,829

(95,583) (79,013)

Loss per share (HK Cents) FREEGBWL) 15

- Basic — B (2.78 cents fill)  (2.44 cents i)

— Diluted —#E N/A FEA N/A &

92  CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. - hEIB#&{E S NE EMERA T



2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET FET
Loss for the year REEERE (95,583) (79,013)
Other comprehensive expense HEib2mpE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E 14 i EFT 7 AE = 1825 9IHH -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign 4F IR E G INE TS B 4 7 (B H, = %58
operations arising during the year (3,835) (5,432)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 5% i — &1 B A 1RSSR FE i % B
upon deregistration of a subsidiary i (541) -
Other comprehensive expense, net of Hftt 2B (HERFTEH)
income tax (4,376) (5,432)
Total comprehensive expense AEEXERREE
for the year (99,959) (84,445)
Total comprehensive (expense) income UTALTEGAFE2E(FY)
for the year attributable to: Was4B%E -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEE SN (108,598) (96,274)
Non-controlling interests IR R 8,639 11,829
(99,959) (84,445)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Se BB R

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-hF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—®B-nE T \F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FHET FHET
Assets and liabilities BEREGE
Non-current assets FREEE
Goodwill [HES 16 1,838 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit FiBIEZ RN TES|R SREE
or loss 22 10,013 15,107
Property, plant and equipment M BENEE 17 3,835 9,588
Right-of-use assets RREE 18 4,483 -
Investment in an associate WEHENT] 19 22,000 51,000
42,169 75,695
Current assets REEE
Contingent consideration receivable FEM SR ARAE 20 16,025 14,619
Other receivables H b fE U BR X 21 104,113 88,374
Financial assets at fair value through profit #iBIBRIZ A ESRZ S REE
or loss 22 305 507
Cash and cash equivalents e MHEEEIER 23 18,967 70,898
139,410 174,398
Total assets EEHE 181,579 250,093
Current liabilities REBE
Convertible notes AT IR 29 47,669 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 5,566 -
Other payables HAbERTARR 25 40,229 29,249
93,464 29,249
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2019 2018
—B-hE  STE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FHET FH&TT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible notes AR EE 29 - 34,645
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 1,381 -
Deferred tax liabilities RETIEEE 26 - 5,891
1,381 40,536
Total liabilities SE858 94,845 69,785
Net current assets REBEEFHE 45,946 145,149
Total assets less current liabilities EERBERABAR 88,115 220,844
Net assets EEFHE 86,734 180,308
Capital and reserves B R FEE
Share capital &N 27 375,130 375,130
Reserves S (292,122) (212,500)
Non-controlling interests FEFEEREES 3,726 17,678
Total equity AR 86,734 180,308
The consolidated financial statement on pages 92 to 222 were FEREEF2RENGENBHMEN_S_ZF=H

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2020 and are signed on it behalf by:

Yuan Wei
=E
Director

EF

ST-REEFEHEREETE YhTIEER

REE

Zhang Jianxin
SRR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-_ZT-NF+_A=+T—HLFE
Convertible
Share-based  Exchange notes PR staff Non
Share Share payment  fluctuation equity awardfund Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TEET
WRxf  EERRE  TRREE  REES
k& RHEE B B ERRE fife 2itER Rit FEREE  ERGH
Note 28 (c)(i) Note 28 (c)(ii) Note 28 (c)(iii) Note 28 (c)(iv)
Wios) WS FEse)) s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén TEn T#n Tén TR T#n Tén TEn
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E
—-F-H 356,590 382,783 78,953 9,194 29,815 11,730 (622,189) 196,876 5849 202,725
(Loss) proft for the year KER(BR)EN - - - - - - 0082 (084 189 (19019
Other comprehensive expense REEEMRERY
for the year - - - (64%2) - - - (6432 - (6432
Total comprehensive (expense)income R E 2 (F% i
for the year g - - - (5432 - - Gos) (@274 189 444
Transfer upon the lapse of share options - BB JEs 8% - - 2919 - - - 2919 - - -
Issue of shares by exercised of REREEFENETR
share option f 5540 17,204 (6,216) - - - - 16,628 - 16,528
Issue of share placing hhREEn 13,000 32,500 - - - - - 45,500 - 45,500
At31 December 2018 RZE-\§+ZR
=t+-f 375,130 382,487 69,818 3,762 29,815 11,730 (110,112 162,630 17,678 180,308
Impact on inita application of FEREANRREE
HKFRS 16 AlE165% 2 72 - - - - - - (7.715) (7,715) - {7.715)
At1 January 2019, s restated R=E-hE-F-H
(e 375,130 382,487 69,818 3,762 29815 11,730 (T17,827) 154,915 17,678 172,593
(Loss) prof for the year KEE(HR)RH - - - - - - (104222) (104222 8639 (95,583)
Other comprehensive expense TEEEM2ERT
for the year
Exchange differences on translating BEBINER
foreign operations LERER - - - (3,835) - - - (3,835) - (3,835)
Realisation of exchange fuctuation HH-FHEAT
feserve upon deregistration of a ERRERE
subsidiary - - - (541) - - - (541) - (541)
Total comprehensive (expense)income AN 27 (B Wissié
for the year £ - - - (4,376) - - (l04222)  (10859) 8639 (99,959
Transfer upon the lapse of share options & TR 25 s e - - (10,056) - - - 10,056 - - -
Issue of share options TR - - 30,800 - - - - 30,800 - 30,800
Re\easg of deferred Tax liabitties SRR
previously recognised
Iéi’iéf,ﬁ;ﬁ? - - - - 5,801 - - 5,801 - 5,801
Dividends peic to non-controling inferest  F3EARER RS - - - - - - - - (22,591) (22591)
At31 December 2019 RZF-NE
+-A=+-8 5130 82487 90562 614 3706 130 (811,99 83,008 37 867
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BieE FHER FHT
Cash flow from operating activities REEREL CHESHRE
Loss before tax MR FH AT ETIE (95,583) (79,013
Adjustments for: AT &EZ A
Finance costs, net RO A FRE 13,267 10,225
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - = MR EITE 3,250 2,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREESENE 1,123 -
Interest income FEMA (2,541) (422)
Equity-settled share-based payments J%Hﬂiﬁ HEE 7 ARSI 30,800 -
Net unrealised losses (gains) on financial LTE@?§@${EEJFEZ% BE
assets at fair value through profit or loss EREZRERE(NR)FE 3,796 (49)
Net share of result of an associate JEAER—MEE R RlZ
ES e 1,517 (3,628)
Fair value change of contingent JEW S AREBE R TEZ
consideration receivable (1,406) (14,685)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate % & —REiE < A 71 F E k518 27,719 55,027
Impairment loss on other receivables Hib RUER FUREE 1B - 3,000
Exchange (gains)/losses &N (W), BB (174) 10
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BB MR 2 W
equipment (920) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B AR 2k (541) -
Operating cash flows before EEESRBAIKEELE
movements in working capital Re&RE (19,693) (26,924)
Changes in other receivables HAn e R E ) (15,707) (14,031)
Changes in other payables HAb TR E 9,579 919
Cash used in operations REXBFARS (25,821) (40,036)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BfHEERE 2 F B (243) -
Overseas taxes paid BHEINRIE - -
Net cash used in operating activities S EEFAARSEE (26,064) (40,036)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BieE FHER FHT
Cash flow from investing activities RETHELECHRSRE
Payment of property, plant and equipment Bt - BB & R N 2 5718 (543) (4,041)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEW% - HE &2 2 S 708
and equipment 4,200 -
Purchases of financial assets at fair value ~ fEEiE BBt AT ETEZ S
through profit or loss BhEE - (15,000)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value fBEEBIERIE AT EANEZ S
through profit or loss BhEE 1,500 -
Interest received BUFIE 2,541 302
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of [a— M@ A&~ IEE gz
a subsidiary 2z IRE (22,591) -
Repayment of loans and interest from EEBEARERLFE
an associate - 14,320
Capital injection to an associate Mg EAREE (794) (4,142
Proceeds from disposal of investment held  H &R {ESSERE 7 TS FIE
for sales - 38,000
Net cash outflows from acquisition of a W —fET B AR 2R e
subsidiary FEE (472) -
Net cash (used in) from investing RETH (A FMEREFESE
activities (16,159) 29,439
Cash flow from financing activities REITBMERERE
Proceeds from issue of shares by BB ST Z FTE R
placements - 45,500
Payment of lease liabilities XHEAE (6,649) -
Exercised of share option 1T IERR - 16,528
Net cash (used in) from financing MEITE (A MEREFEHE
activities (6,649) 62,028
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReERELEEEE 2(RD)
cash equivalents BhFEE (48,872) 51,431
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzRERBELEHEER
beginning of the year 70,898 20,767
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREH) v /& (3,059) (1,300)
Cash and cash equivalents attheend FRCZEERRESEEHEER
of the year 23 18,967 70,898
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China E-Information Technology Group Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 July 2001. The
shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section of
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year.

e Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

e Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

e HKFRS 16 Leases

o Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

e HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments
e Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Except as describe in “Changes in accounting polices”
stated in Note 4 in relation to the adoption of HKFRS 16, the
application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts *

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business *

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material '

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 39,  Interest Rate Benchmark

HKFRSs 7 and 9 Reform'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisition for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective dale not yet been determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So for the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

102

POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Changes in accounting policies

The following explain the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and also discloses the new
accounting policies that have been applied from 1 January
2019, where they are different to those applied in prior
periods.

Adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS
16 introduced a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have
an impact or leases where the Group is the lessor. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.
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7R [ FHE P RAE AR AR S ZART &
BB HREERE165RREBRASIAE G5
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

(@ New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

4,

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)
(@ New definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly,
contracts that were previously assessed as leases
under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as
leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial application.
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate
applied is 2.9%.

4. FESTHHER®
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BT BB HEERE165(F)
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(b)

HMERFEZ (&)

AEEEHR _T-NAF-A—HExZ
BEIUKBENANWERBT AN HRE
ERFIRTNHEN TR - N _-F
—NFE—HA—BARIZHNAK A&ED
RABELERRENE UWSHRER
HAHEEEHENBENETZHN
FMER S - Bt EATRIBEEE G5 ER
FITRAEAEENANEBEREEY
B 2RI E 1658 ARSI RHEE - MR
A RIEHERB LR & BB AR
PIRFFBITAK

ENA B BRI N B R T E

BEM R EERF1SRBUH A A
HE P BAKEHEAMEHENHRE
(BB ERIFEITSREAPIARE) - 18
[ AEBERABAR  BENLAEAE
HE(BRLAREESEERFE17H
DERKERENEE) EEHEER
BEEEEHSRIEHR -

RERETHOBEAEEHENHENH
1 SECEARNEXRERBEH
MHRAS B B R AL BTN X - TR K
IR B R K 32.9%

i
+

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. - HFEIfZEERNEEEERATE



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied

the following recognition exemption and practical

expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS

16:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in a similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of properties was determined on a
portfolio basis;

used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension options;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an alternative
to an impairment review.

4. TESFHE®
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(b)

106

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 29(b) as at 31
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTHHER®

B BORB B ()
BT BB HEERE165(F)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b) FAHACIEIEBEE(E)

(Continued)
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitments at 31 December INALE BTSRRI EZ
2018 as disclosed in the Group’s consolidated R—E2—)\#+=-_A=+—H2
financial statements KB TH S 9,517

Discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing FANR_ZE—hF— A —BAEEZ
BILEEFIRALIR 8,772
W R HATHE R R (1,057)

rate at 1 January 2019
Less: recognition exemption for short-term leases

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 R=-ZE—hE—A—HEIZHEEE 7,715

EHIDBEAKEHEZHEHRBERRE
BECRBASRHTHERENESH#ER
TRZERER YRER-_T—-N\F
TZA=Z+T—BZHEAMBRRKER

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised
at an amount equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of

any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the statement of consolidated
financial position at 31 December 2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid, if any, are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

ZHERRZ EAEMN KB EENR
TRETTHE -

ENEREMAERS(MB)REEEY
BmEEFR [ R TA ([ FEHE
HEERESR AR VIFRAFER
B RIS HRRH A TFENFHBRER
BIMEE MR AT ASEFAEEEKA
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

4. FESTTHE®

BT BEREE (#)

BB BRIB R ERIE1655 (#)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b) FEEASIHEIERBEZEE)
(Continued)
The following table summaries the impacts of the TR NS B 15 RE 2RI 1658
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated HAREBGEMBRRRZTE
statement of financial position:
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
31 December Recognition 1 January
Line items in the consolidated 2018 of leases Impairment 2019
statement of financial positon =~ ZRABFBHEREER RZB-N\E RZZ-h&
impacted by the adoption of F16nFEvHRREHE +-A=t-A —-A—H
HKFRS 16 RRREE ZIRHE HERR HfE ZIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
Assets &E
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 7,715 (7,715) -
Liabilities &
Lease liabilties HEa% - 7,715 - 7,715
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(c)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as
a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This results in a
positive impact on the reported profit from operations
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee is
required to split rentals paid under capitalised leases
into their principal element and interest element (note
24). These elements are classified as financing cash
outflows and operating cash outflows respectively.
Although total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant change
in presentation of cash flows within the cash flow
statement (note 24).

4. FESTHHER®

B BORB B ()
BT BB HEERE165(F)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

110

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(c)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group (Continued)

The following tables give an indication of the estimated
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
financial result and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2019, by adjusting the amounts reported
under HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial
statements to compute estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised under
HKAS 17 if this superseded standard had continued to
apply in 2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing
these hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual
2018 corresponding amounts which were prepared
under HKAS 17.

4. FESTTHE®

B BORB B ()
BT BB HEERE165(F)

HAEEUPBRER B REZZE
()

()

TRERNRRT BT HREERE165
HARBHE_T-NF+_A=1—
AtFEZHMBRERRSRE Z A5
FE NERRABRZEFRAMBHERTR
BEEEVBEREEAFIHMER S
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTEGTTHEE®

POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued) SHBEEEE)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) RN E BB 3R & E B 551655 (/&)
(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows (c) HIREFHFHEERES REZFE
of the Group (Continued) (%)
2019 2018
“E-hF —Z-N\F
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to Compared
Add back: operating Hypothetical to amounts
Amounts HKFRS 16 lease as if amounts reported
reported depreciation under for 2019 for 2018
under and interest HKAS 17 as if under under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
ek : B8
Redge R
meE & [k —E-hE e
BEEBHE BBRE (EmRE ZBREE ERETH
HREEE R F165 EREE (EmIRE BT \F
F165 28K THHER BIE175) EEa 2HEH
ZeE SR (FaE1) RRIZTH) [y
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT THET TAET
Financial result for year SHRRERIEREER
ended 31 December 2019  F1655F&
impacted by the adoption HBZ-E—-h#f
of HKFRS 16: +=-R=+-H
LEEZBBES:
Loss from operation mEEE (82,316) 1,123 (8,757) (89,950) (68,788)
Finance costs BHERAK (13,267) 243 - (13,024) (10,225)
Loss before taxation BB AR (95,583) 1,366 (8,757) (102,974) (79,013
Loss for the year FRER (95,583) 1,366 (8,757) (102,974) (79,013)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group (Continued)

4. FESTTHE®

B BORB B ()
BT BB HEERE165(F)

© HAEEYBEERESREZHE

(&)

2019 2018
“E2-hE —E-N\F

Estimated

amounts
related to Compared
operating  Hypothetical to amounts
Amounts leases as if amounts reported
reported under for 2019 for 2018
under HKAS 17 as if under under
HKFRS 16  (note(s) 1 & 2) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
AHRERE RIE

PALH K EYEEH

REEEME CEMRE BRE®E  ERETR
REER BFRETER CEmgE H-T)\F

F165525 ESVE) BB Xk
ok x ! (FE1R2)  ERIE175) i
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TART FEx TEx TET
Line items in the consolidated S FAFBHBEREERZE16
cash flow statement for year BYECEE_EZ-NE
ended 31 December 2019 +ZA=t-HLEEZ
impacted by the adoption of FEReRERER
HKFRS 16:
Cash used in operations AR S (25,821) (6,892) (32,713) (40,036)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 EF S 2 FIE 25 (243) 243 - -
Net cash used in operating ReTHRARETE
activities (26,064) (6,649) (32,713) (40,036)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B RFAEMS 2 B4R 5 (6,649) 6,649 - -
Net cash (used in) from financing & EE (F7) g
activities BeFHE (6,649) 6,649 - 62,028
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group (Continued)

Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the cash
flows in 2019 that relate to leases which would
have been classified as operating leases, if HKAS
17 had still applied in 2019. This estimate assumes
that there were no difference between rentals
and cash flows and that all of the new leases
entered into in 2019 would have been classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had
still applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is
ignored.

Note 2. In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order
to compute hypothetical amounts of net cash
generated from operating activities and net cash
used in financing activities as if HKAS 17 still
applied.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

4. FESTHHER®
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Al
inter-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstance indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

REMBHRREEARA R ENE QR (FRHE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(o) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTEGTTHEE®

POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. On acquisition
of the investment, any difference between the cost of the
investment and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
follows:

(@ Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment. Amortisation of that
goodwill is not permitted.

(o)  Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value
of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment is included as income in the
determination of the group’s share of the associate ‘s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the most recently available financial statements of an
associate is different from the Group’s reporting date, the
Group may take advantage of the provision contained in
HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable
share of associate’s results based on the financial
statements drawn up to a noncoterminous period end
where the difference must be no greater than three months.
Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant
transactions or events that occur between that date and the
date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in an associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associate is not individually tested for impairment.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

For each business combination, the acquirer measures the
non- controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
HKFRS 9 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKFRS 9, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquire
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell and
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place wither in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient date are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purpose are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to

its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease
terms or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuead)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than trade
and other receivables, inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Initial recognition and classification of financial
assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on their contractual cash flow characteristics and
the business model for managing the instruments. Financial
assets are classified as measured at amortised cost, fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) or fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (either with recycling
to profit or loss for debt instruments or without recycling to
profit or loss for equity investments). On initial recognition,
the Group measures a financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financial component that is
initially measured at the transaction price) at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. The transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

The measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they meet
both of the following conditions and are not designated as at
FVTPL:

° They are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° The contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt investments at FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

° [t is held with a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

° Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity investment at FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment by investment basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This included all derivative financial assets and equity
investments that are held for trading. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are held for trading when they have been
purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making
through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial
instruments that are managed together, for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at
fair value. Except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments, changes in fair value are recognised as net
gains or losses in profit or loss. Interest and dividend income
are recognised as other income in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These financial assets (including loans and receivables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate (“EIR”).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Dividends are recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established unless the dividend clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and cannot
be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified at FVTPL if it is
held for trading, is a derivative or is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value with net gains or losses, including interest
expenses, recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expenses and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured at fair value based on the present value
of the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion
option. The equity component is initially recognised at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible notes
as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Reclassification of financial assets and
liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent
to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of,
or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified. The Group did not reclassify any of its financial
assets or liabilities during the year.

Derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s combined
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified and the cash
flows of the modified liability are substantially different, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the respective carrying value of
the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on its receivables. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for its receivables.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that
the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or
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POLICIES (Continueq)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continueq)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with
any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend,
the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continueq)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligations, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flow (where the effect is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer for the services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
discounts. Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods
or services (that is an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that
asset; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities on the following bases:

(i) Tuition revenue from educational programs is
recognised over time with reference to the detailed
terms of relevant education programs as stipulated in
the contracts. The performance obligation is satisfied
over time as services are rendered.

(i)  Revenue from sales of educational materials and
products is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
the profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payments are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision will be made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service payments as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

144

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation scheme (“Scheme”) to remunerate its
employees.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the employees’ services rendered in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense immediately and credited to the share- based
payment reserve under equity. Where the employees
are required to meet vesting conditions before they
become entitled to the options, the Group recognises
the fair value of the options granted over the vesting
periods. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, in
the profit or loss, and a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based payment reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services rendered
or, if the fair value of the services rendered cannot
be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the
date the Group receives the services and is recognised
as an expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTEGTTHEE®

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued) EEERE)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued) (i) HURSZIFIE(E)
Upon exercise of the share options, the resulting shares REEFRAEIETTRIE - AR F)FIEA L 31T
issued are recorded by the Company as additional 2R D 2 E{ER SR AREIMNEAS - T
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and TEHEEBEROEEZHEEBGZARAD
the excess of the exercise price over the nominal value AR S B - RS ERUART S
of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share NER  BEEBRERITE L ERLT
premium account. The equity amount is recognised in 78 8 B 2 IS ) SR (B BR AT o i B S S 2T
the share- based payment reserve until the option is RXETE HEAUNRSNHEeHEE
exercised when it is transferred to the share premium BARE&EF -

account. If the options lapse unexercised, the related
share-based payment reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.

Leases HE

Definition of a lease HEZES

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a e BBRBREMmMS TE—RIEFERIZSE
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of HRNEEGHZER BZALNAEHEENRBS
time in exchange for consideration. GEN

The Group as lessee AEBERAEA

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a AEEREGHVIEB BT EEORETERESK
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises BEHE NEEREEAERBMANRAERE
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with THERERAEEENEERERE  BizE
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, REAE(TEAEBAR12EASNUTHEE
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease MEEEEHREIN -

term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the date of reassessment;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continueq)
Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter period
of lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statements of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTEGTTHEE®

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non- monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

152

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5.

154

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account their estimated residual
value. The Company assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets and if the expectation differs from
the original estimates, such differences from the original
estimates will affect the depreciation charges in the year in
which the estimates change.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
approximately HK$3,835,000 and HK$4,483,000 (2018:
HK$9,588,000 and nil) respectively. No impairment loss
was recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment
(2018: nil) and right-of-use assets during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Impairment loss on other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the other
receivables. Appropriate impairment for expected credit
losses is recognised in the profit or loss.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit
losses. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

BREE Sl R st o)

CEEOEELSEIC
WE BERREUREAEEEZTE

WE - BERREAREREEENE BMAE
RHBERRELENRE 2 A ERBRA
SHEIE - ARBEFHEYE  BE KRB
RAE A EZ FSREERMERBR - HEH
fRBER e fhat - IR EART 2 ZEEBFEM
AIEEEZIEER -

A—E—NF+_A=1+—8 9% BEEE

LA R A E 2 BRE{E 5 7 53,835,000

JT }.4,483,0008 7L ( —Z — \ & : 9,588,000/5

TRE)HBEZZ-NF+A=+—HLF

B -BERmE BELRRE CZE-N\F &)
KA At & ERERREEE

B 5 RAMERIRN ZBEER

ﬁfiiﬁ%ﬁ?fﬁ{ﬂfuﬁlﬁ%%’\ZTW@‘%ﬁ °
FEHEEREMNEERENIERER

AEBECEAEBMBRE LR Z @
TELTENEHRBEEERGFERREEE
B ARECREY —ERERRE  EENAEE
BEEEBRLER YHREBAREZAE
MERMEERFELAE -

TEAKEENREEERAR



5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately HK$104,113,000 (2018:
HK$88,374,000). No allowance for impairment loss on
other receivables was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: approximately HK$3,000,000).

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model which requires the
management’s estimates and assumptions on significant
calculation inputs, including the estimated life of share
options granted, the volatility of share price and expected
dividend yield. Change in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately HK$30,800,000 was
recognised in profit or loss (2018: nil).

Impairment loss of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill needs impairment requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flow is less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill
was approximately HK$1,838,000 arose from the acquisition
of Earth Spa Inc Pte Ltd. No impairment loss on goodwill
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. BRETHE R
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of investment in an associate

The Group assesses if investment in associate has suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36. Details
of the approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future
cash flows, including expected dividends and the selection
of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the adjustments of
their carrying amounts.

The carrying amount of investment in an associate at the end
of the reporting period was approximately HK$22,000,000
(2018: HK$51,000,000) and an impairment loss of
approximately HK$27,719,000 (2018: HK$55,027,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The directors have determined
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s contingent
consideration receivable and unlisted financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. The
management of the Group will exercise its judgements
based on its experience to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
model. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the board of directors of the Company.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION
Business segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

Despite the Group acquired the entire equity interest of Earth
Spa Inc Pte Ltd. (“Earth Spa”), a company incorporated
in Singapore and engaging in the provision of healthcare
services in Singapore, however the Group is currently having
one continuing operating segment on a single business in
a single geographical location, which is the provision of an
internet platform for the facilitation of education program in
Chinese medicine and other advisory and training programs
in the PRC, which is only one single reportable segment of
the Group which is regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s non current assets
of approximately HK$22,857,000 (2018: HK$51,800,000)
and HK$7,761,000 (2018: HK$2,435,000) were located in
the PRC and Singapore respectively. In addition, there were
approximately HK$11,551,000 (2018: HK$21,460,000)
located in Hong Kong.

Information about a major customer

No transactions with a single external customer amount to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.
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7.
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REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the years is as

follows:

7. WA

AEBRFRAZEREINT

2019 2018
—E-hE  —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Tuition fee revenue recognised over time BERr FERERR 2 BB RIE 2 A 63,124 57,856
OTHER INCOME 8. HAbUA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interest income FLEHA 2,541 422
Sundry income LT GN - 20
Net exchange gains P W e F EE 174 -
Gain on disposal of property plant and HEME BB RE 2 W
equipment 920 -
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair  F#BIBFRIZAFEFEZ S REE
value through profit or loss 2RI FRE - 49
Fair value change of contingent consideration  JEU Sk A (B 2 A T (EE
receivable 1,406 14,685
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary I — B A R 2 W 541 -
5,682 15,176
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9. OTHER LOSSES 9. HfuEE

2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Net unrealised losses on financial assets at fair  #EiBIERIZA T ENEZ S REE
value through profit or loss 2 AREBEIBFE 3,796 -
Net exchange losses [ 5 B8 5 - 10
3,796 10

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. R & AL A

2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Effective interest expense on convertible notes  AIHRAR 245 7 R F 2B 13,024 10,225
Finance cost on lease liabilities HEABBERA 243 -
13,267 10,225
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR M. XFEEBE

2019 2018
—E-NF —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Loss for the year tax has been arrived at after ~ AEEFIBE M GTA) T3I&E:

charging (crediting):
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)  EER RN (BIEEEE)

— Basic salaries and allowances —EXR e RER 22,708 16,829

— Contributions to defined contribution plans ~ — FERBMLRET 2] > 3% 2,127 918

- Other —Hfth 320 555

— Equity-settled share-based payments — DARSREAEE 2 LA S 15 7B 27,300 -
Total staff costs BEBNA 52,455 18,302
Auditors remuneration: ZEENIS -

— Audit service — 2RI 600 800
Legal and professional fee FERBEEER 2,940 12,263
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - = MR ETE 3,250 2,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,123 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE R K& W

plant and equipment (920) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary i —AB ARz s (541) -
Equity-settled share-based payments VARG HE S S 2 ARR S S 500R

(including staff, directors and consultants) (PHEEE E=KEM) 30,800 -
Impairment loss on other receivables HibEUARRUREEE - 3,000
Impairment loss on investment in an associate & &4 A 77 FEE B 27,719 -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

12. EEREEMS

EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEME
Salaries, Equity- Payments for
allowances  Retirement settled Performance termination of
and benefits scheme share-based related  service of
Fees inkind contributions  payments bonuses directors Total
Hé BER  BRIGHE RELEZ B ALES
e  BYNE #5 MREARE  EERA  BE2ER st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHT FHL Fhr FHr T FhER FHR
For the year ended BZ-Z-n&E+CH
31 December 2019 S+-ALEE
Executive Directors HTEZR
Mr. Yuan Wei RELE 1,500 M 18 2,692 - - 4,251
Ms. Zhang Jianxin REFRT 600 - - 440 - - 1,040
Mr. Zheng Zhijng OErEsE 600 - - - - - 600
Ms. Lin Yan MLt 600 - 18 - - - 618
Ms. Wong Hiu Pui TBEXT 600 - - - - - 600
Independent Non- BUKHTES
Executive Directors
Ms. Yang Qingchun BEEXT 115 - 6 176 - - 207
Mr. Tang Juda BRERE 115 - - 176 - - 201
Ms. Lu Xiaowel ERHLL 115 - - 176 - - 291
4,245 M 42 3,660 - - 7,988
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEMe@
Salaries, Equity- Payments for
alowances  Retrement settled  Performance  termination of
and benefits scheme  share-based related service of
Fees inkind  contributions payments bonuses directors Total
FeoRMRk  RIGHE NRERE ®E o BIEE
e Ehfla B WRXATUE BB R 5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TR TaT TET TAT TAT TAT TR
For the year ended HE-E-N\&E+ZH
31 December 2018 =t-ALFE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Yuan Wei rERE 1,500 112 18 - - - 1,630
Ms. Zhang Jianxin REFLT 600 - - - - - 600
Mr. Zheng Zhiing BEREE 600 - - - - - 600
Ms. Lin Yan HEXL 600 - 8 - - - 608
Ms. Wong Hiu Pui TREXT 600 - - - - - 600
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Ms. Yang Qingchun BEELL 4 - 2 - - - 44
Mr. Tang Jiuda BRELE 70 - - - - - 70
Mr. Li Qunsheng TRELE 59 - - - - - 59
Mr. Wang Xinsheng TaEksE 29 - - - - - 29
Ms. Lu Xiaowei BBt 100 - - - - - 100
4,200 112 28 - - - 4,340
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

a.

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The amounts of equity-settled share-based payments
for the year ended 31 December 2019 were measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the directors of the Company waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the
Company and no incentive payment for joining the
Company to any director of the Company during the
two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

12. EEREEME®

BEEME(E)

BE_T-—NWFT_A=+—BLFE
Z VAR HE R B 2 AR N SRR T IR B A7
B IRA M AR B A R B A BAR ST
NRH 2 EFBERTE -

HEZZ-—hhEFkZZE—NF+ZA
=+ RIEMEFE BEAQRESK
ESRERETMEARARZHZBE -
TESMARR R HEFBERET
RABHEHAIES -
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEM T
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b. Five highest paid individuals b. AlUESHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEBAUGRFATBREEARF —F
in the Group, one (2018: one) was director of the —E-N\F:—R)EE HBEZHN
Company, whose remunerations are included in the REXHEE - TRHFEBHOE(ZZE—N
disclosures above. The remunerations of the remaining F ) AT ZHMIT ¢

four (2018: four) individuals were as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE T )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FHT
Salaries allowances and benefits inkind ~ ¥& « 2BE R EWFI 2,425 5,798
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIMHR 18 18
Equity-settled share-based payments DARS FE 45 & 2 LARS 2 A<t 3k0E 11,665 -
14,108 5,816

Their remunerations were within the following band: WEZSEMNEIN Y SBEA -

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000/8 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 2£6,000,00078 7T 5 4

c. Directors’ material interests in C. EERXRG THIREHNZE

transactions, arrangement or RER
contracts
No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in RE R F AT ANA B ES] S
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company FFEEAREBRESEMANATEES=E
was a party and in which a director of the Company EMEBE IR EFEESEEBREEA
and the director’s connected party had a material BRZBERS THs A4 -

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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13. INCOME TAX 13. FR5%i

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no Hong Kong BE_Z-NEF+A=1+—"HBLEE &R
profits tax has been provided in the financial statements as REEW BN EBE EFRERTR 7F'J ' EﬁZ]I
the Group did not generate any taxable profits in Hong Kong BRI ISRERIEE T BN SR BE(=

(2018: Nil). F Mo

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income tax AR BB B A B Th1%25%( —F— )\ : 25%) 1)
at 25% (2018: 25%). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions BRGNP ENSTH At eiERES
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective ZRIBIRZ B AR 2RI ERAE -
jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss AFEMHRBHEGSAEENEMEZERERZ
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR B ERAT -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Loss before tax BRECATE 1R (95,583) (79,013)

Tax at respective applicable tax rates ZHERBERNRETE 2 TRE (17,884) (15,230)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ FAIHNFIE S ~ B iS5 L

purposes 34,173 30,619

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes  HZERTIWA 2 B 15 s £ (18,393) (17,949)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBBE BTG TE 2,104 2,560

Income tax for the year REEREH - -
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

14.

15.

16.

166

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2018: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$104,222,000 (2018: HK$90,842,000),
and based on the weighted average number of shares
in issue during the year of approximately 3,751,297,033
ordinary shares (2018: 3,725,476,210 ordinary shares, as
adjusted to reflect the shares by exercise of share options
and placing of shares during the year).

14. IR 2.

BE T NF+-_A=+t—HILFEIHEK
SR AR B, FASRAE HA R 18 JRdm s
IRHERRE(ZT—\F : &)

15. B E#

BREAEEBDREAFEARAQAZEAR
16 5 18 49104,222,0007 7L( = T — N\ F:
90,842,000 7T ) + A M 4SS % A R R FF 1T
Bl R RO EREMEITRG 2 FRNEEHTR
13 N F 58 B 493,751,297,0338 L @A (=
T— \4F : 3,725,476,2100% L mA% - LTI
SRR FTE R IR R AL E RN ETE ) -

GOODWILL 16. B &
2019 2018
—E-hE  —T\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Reconciliation of carrying amount EREEYR

At beginning of reporting period REREHA - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) I s —EF B 2 B (F15E30) 1,838 -
At end of reporting period RS ER 1,838 -

On 31 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% issued
share capital of Earth Spa Inc Pte Ltd. (“Earth Spa”) from an
independent third party at a consideration of approximately
SGD100,000 (equivalent of approximately HK$574,000).
Earth Spa is a company incorporated in Singapore with
limited liability. Earth Spa is principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services in Singapore. The directors
are of the view that the acquisition provides opportunities to
the Company to broaden its business portfolio.

R-E—AE+-A=+—HB AEEH—Z
Y87 % = 5 YeBEEarth Spa Inc Pte Ltd.([Earth
Spa] #J100% 2 #FTAR A - (X8 & 47100,000%7
DN T (F8 8 M 49574,0007% 7T ) ° Earth Spak
—RIRFT NS EMA L Z BBRAF] ° Earth Spa
FERERTMEREBERRERE -EER
A WEERMHEE ARA A RRMAEEKES -
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units (“CGUS”)
that are expected to benefit from the business combination.
The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to the
Group’s CGU's identified as healthcare service business from
Earth Spa.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently, if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of CGU has been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period by applying average
growth rate of 3% from 2020 to 2024. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rate of 3% per annum. The discount rates used,
which management estimates to reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU'’s cash flows are 11%.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in any of there assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of goodwill of Earth Spa to exceed its recoverable
amount.

16. B&E @)

HEESREEHAANEAEBEHPERZ
ReEXBN([ReELEMN]) HEZER
BEIREAEBE REEABMEHBIR
Earth Spa 2 E&FERIERT o

AEESFETHERENR HENRE
R ERRERE - e EAAZORE -

ReELABU 2 kOeBE RIZEREE
BET %St EEReREERt O RERF
Y BRECHeRERA YR _FT_FTF
E-T_NFEEMA%NTFIGERXR -BHAF
HZ RS REEMAFIBREI%ETHR -
PrE MM R R (EEB R/ ARRERF TS
HeRBHECHERREEEEM RSN
ENRERR)R11%

EERARIMNEFBRR2ERNEEAEZS T
€8 HYEarth Spa BEREEBEEAIWE S
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17.903% - BER&EE
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
B HER
HEMEHE PLERE AE @5t
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FAET FAET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—\F+_H
=+—H 2,698 14,264 9,113 26,075
Additions NE 120 820 3,101 4,041
Exchange realignment P& 5 2 - (793) (60) (853)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January R=-Z—/\F+_-A

2019 =—t+—BRZZT—NF

—H—H 2,818 14,291 12,154 29,263
Additions NE - 543 - 543
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) Wi — M B AR

(PH7E30) - 35 - 35
Disposal e - (4,701) (7,406) (12,107)
Exchange realignment IE i EE 1 (472) 2 (473)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—N&F+=A

=+—H 2,819 9,696 4,746 17,261
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

17. % - BERZRE®

EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HM-RER
HEMERE BRLERE AE @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FAT TAT
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERRE
impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF-A—H 1,248 13,886 2,713 17,847
Charge for the year FRETE 600 148 1,863 2,611
Exchange realignment 0 R - (719) (64) (783)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January M -Z—/\F+_A
2019 =t+—BR=-ZT-IF
—H—H 1,848 13,315 4,512 19,675
Charge for the year FAETR 720 471 2,059 3,250
Disposal HE - (4,469) (4,358) (8,827)
Exchange realignment 0 A 1 (657) (16) (672)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF+=R
=+—H 2,569 8,660 2,197 13,426
Carrying amounts HREE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hE+=A
=+—H 250 1,036 2,549 3,835
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=A
=t+—H 970 976 7,642 9,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

18. Right-of-use assets 18. FFAEE

The movements in right-of-use assets are as follows:— TREEE2EHIT - —

HK$' 000

FET

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 M ERB BV BRELNE16R TR 7,715
Impairment RE (7,715)
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H -
Additions NE 4,972
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) U B8 — IR B A =1 (Bt 5E30) 634
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEZH (1,123)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-NF+-A=+—H 4,483
Depreciation charge on the right-of-use assets is recognised FRAREEZITESHERESEIRN —ZE2_F
using the straight-line method over a period of 1 to 2 years. HAREIN R o
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19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REPEZ N F]

2019 2018

—2-NF —FN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

At 1 January ®n—H—H 51,000 101,743
Addition i 794 4,142
Share of (losses) profits S (EE) R (1,517) 3,628
Impairment loss BIBEETE (27,719) (55,027)
Exchange realignment HE 3¢ 5 5 (558) (3,486)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 22,000 51,000

During the year, the Group made a provision for impairment
loss on investment in an associate, Beijing Youli Lianxu
Technology Co., Ltd (“Beijing Youli”), of approximately
HK$27,719,000 (2018: HK$55,027,000) due to decreasing
consumer spending and general economic conditions.
Following the outbreak of trade war in 2018, it continuously
affect global economies. The trade war brought negative
effect on the economies where the associate operates,
consumers are losing confidence and sacrifice online
shopping.

The entire carrying amount of the investment in an associate
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets by comparing its recoverable amount
with its carrying amount.

FR AEBERR—HBEQARLRENZ
A FHRRE B 18 8§ #927,719,0007 7T( =
= — )\ : 55,027,000/ 7)) JThENHEE S
TEOR DA RBEEERR BB —\FiE
BEGH B AREFVEEEE - ESEE
BENREEMELAERENEETE  MH
BEXREEOLRELEEY -

RIBB B G EREI6IEERME - & H AT
Ol e REREEEITHLE BHEQRIKRE
M 2R RREEETTRERIF
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BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

19.

172

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

The Group has appointed an independent professional
valuer to perform an appraisal of the recoverable amount
of the associate as at 31 December 2019. The recoverable
amount of the associate has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The value in use calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets from 2020
to 2024 by applying average growth rate of 26%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate of 3% per annum. The discount rate
used is 14%. Cash inflows/outflows have been determined
based on past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development.

The recoverable amount of the associate is less than its
carrying amount. Accordingly, a provision for impairment of

19, REPZE N7 @)

RZE-NFFTZA=+—0 XEEDEZE
—ZBEEMEMEHE QTN EESEE
TR - B QR M AT B S S YRR E A
BEFAEEIET FREBTEZEAER
FHEEREY RAENR-_Z_ZTFE_ZT
“HFEHBEENRSRETEN BRAF
HOR e R FERTFEIEREIRETHES -
B E B14% - BERA/REERBBETRE
MEREHMISERNBHAMETE -

& NRMAI WO SEEREEEE Eitt
A 7K 4F [ T 7R R (B B 49 527,719,000/% 7T

approximately HK$27,719,000 (2018: HK$55,027,000) was (ZZ—\F : 55,027,000/ 7T)
recognised during the year.
Details of the Group’s associate are as follows: NEE 7 BENTFEH T :

Place of business/ % of

country ownership Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation Principal activities interest method

R B MR
TEER B TEEK BEAIH SRAEE
Shares held indirectly:
B A 2 RD

2019 2018

Beijing Youli PRC e-commerce business 49% 49% Equity
SIS EP H BETRBER A
Set out below are the summarised financial information of an IRBERSAANBR Z — B2 N a2 BB AR

associate which is accounted for using equity method.

-
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19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19.

REBE QAT @)

(Continued)
Summarised financial information BEEREE
2019 2018
—E-nE T \F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FAT
Current E
Cash and cash equivalents RekESEEEER 1,784 4,220
Current assets (excluding cash MEBEE(CTEERE X
and cash equivalents) RE&FMEER) 63,778 55,685
Total current assets HmE)E E 65,562 59,905
Current liabilities mENE G 35,675 26,890
Non-current ISR E
Assets BE 857 698
Net assets FEE 30,744 33,713
Revenue Wz 94,504 96,237
Expenses X (97,599) (88,833)
Total (loss) profit for the year attributable to B4 A T eG4 E (E518 ) i M 48458
the associate (3,095) 7,404

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interests in an associate as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

As of 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances
of the Group’s associate in the PRC denominated in
Renminbi amounted to approximately HK$1,784,000 (2018:
HK$4,220,000) which is not a freely convertible currency

and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to

the exchange control imposed by the PRC government.

The Group’s associate is permitted to exchange Renminbi

to other foreign currencies through banks authorised to

conduct the foreign exchange business.

RZE2—-—NEFrkZE—-—)\F+=_A=+—8"
AEER—HBERR 2 ESWESREE-

R-ZE-hhE+-_A=+—HB A&E@2F
B A E 2 R1T IR & ##2 491,784,000/ T

T —Z4F 1 4,220,000/ 70) Jh A A RS
B MARBIWIFEHLREE M+ EEBINE
FOSE B A B U R SNE B IR IR o AN S B 2 B
ERREREFERBERENSINERER 2 RITH

ARRIBBEMINE
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BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

20.

174

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 20. FEUERARRE
RECEIVABLE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Contingent consideration receivable JEMWEARE 16,025 14,619

References are made to the announcements dated 11 and
24 October 2017 issued by the Company in relation to the
acquisition of 49% equity interest in Beijing Youli. Pursuant
to the sales and purchases agreement, the consideration
payable to the vendors shall be HK$91,581,000 subject to
adjustments as follows:

If Beijing Youli failed to meet the 2017 Profit Target (being the
net profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018 in the amount of HK$12,600,000),
the consideration will be reduced in accordance with the
following formula:

Amount to be deducted from the consideration = (2017
Profit Target — 2017 Actual Profit) x 15 x 51% x 40%.

In respect of the aforesaid reduction in consideration, the
maximum amount to be reduced shall not exceed 40% of
the consideration in any event.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Youli met the
2017 Profit Target.

BRAARANRZ=ZZE—+F+A+—HBHE
ZtmAHEsA AL AREBREILRE
4% -REBEEEHZ BNEARER
91,581,000/ 7T * AIYELA T A% -

WL RENAREER S — &5 F B2
BEZRARRN —_E—+tFNA—HBHE-_ZT—\F
= A=+—BHREMR & 45 F12,600,000/5
TL) REBEIZRBRA T AR ¢

HREIRNESE=(ZE—tFRFEE-—=
T—+FEEEFIx 15x51% x 40% °
g EMRERIME  BLNESSEETW

BRI SEBERER40%

BHE_Z-\F+A=+—HIEFE X
BHEH T —tFHMBZR-
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20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

RECEIVABLE (continued)

If Beijing Youli failed to meet the 2018 Profit Target (being the
net profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019 in the amount of HK$15,120,000),
the Consideration will be reduced in accordance with the
following formula:

Amount to be deducted from the consideration = (2018
Profit Target — 2018 Actual Profit) x 15 x 51% x 20%.

In respect of the aforesaid reduction in consideration, the
maximum amount to be reduced shall not exceed 20% of
the Consideration in any event.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Beijing Youli failed to
meet the 2018 Profit Target, the consideration payable to the
vendors shall be reduced by approximately HK$11,261,429.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 25 April 2017
issued by the Company, the convertible notes in the
aggregate value of HK$91,581,000 have been issued to the
vendors. Since at the date of completion of the acquisition,
the amounts of the reductions in consideration are
contingent, the Group recognised a contingent consideration
receivable at date of completion of the acquisition. The
contingent consideration receivable was initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value
with changes recognised in profit or loss. In determining
the fair value of the contingent consideration receivable,
management considers the probability of meeting the 2017
and 2018 Profit Target based on the historical information
and profit forecast.

20. B ERRE

Wt REBAREER T — \FH5F BZA
BEARIRZE—\FOA—HEZZT-NF
= A=+— B HEMRkRT&45115,120,000/%8
L) REBZRBATARRD

HAREIRHEE=(ZF—N\FufEEZE—=
T N\FEEGEH) x 15 x51% x 20% °

L RERITE RO NRSSREEM
BRI SEBBERER20%

BE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HBLEFE K
BARGEER T \FEHMNEIZ EBNEH
ZREBERAD4I11,261,42978 7T

B ARRAEARE_T—+FWA
Z+RBZ ARG 45891,581,000% 7T
WA R EBRE BT TES - ARRER K
HE REZNBSEBIA  AEERTHR
5 A EiRER UL AR - B AR E Y
EAFERER HERQAFENERIEEEZS
RIBZAER - RETEBSIARBZAFE
K EEEERELENEFENZEFE
I EFRIT - N\FEFBEEZ AR

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=+—HIEFE

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. HiuE R BRFX
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deposits and other receivables me REAMEYGRIE 152,328 145,887
Deferred expenses RIEF T 15,072 8,551
Prepayments TEI SRR 2,615 2,774
Less: impairment losses B REEE (65,902) (68,838)
104,113 88,374
At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s other REMERR - NEE 2 E b fEUER KT E B
receivables were individually determined to be impaired. The ETRAEZRE-. 1I RIRE < FEMGRIAR 1B
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on ?EHH% EEERR - EPERBAEEEBERE
the ECL. It considering the historical credit loss experience, B jﬂ%fﬂ AZETAIETERZN LK ER
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors R{’Eﬁ
and the economic environment.
As at 31 December 2019, approximately HK$86,926,000 RZE—NE+_A=1+—"08 EMERERX

(2018: HK$50,028,000) of the other receivables are
guaranteed by independent third parties.

The movement for provision of impairment of other
receivables is as follows:

#986,926,000/8 7T ( =Z — \F : 50,028,000/

TO) B E =TT R

BREMBYIERERFE 2 ZEEH T

2019 2018

—g-hE  —T)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHETT

At 1 January n—H—H 68,838 68,898
Impairment A - 3,000
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (2,936) (3,060)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 65,902 68,838

176 CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

TEAKEENREEERAR



22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 22 EREZRATVETEZEH
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR BE

LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F

Listed securities LTES

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (i) — B T RIIARE () 305 507

Unlisted fund investments (i) e ETES A () 10,013 15,107

10,318 15,614

()  The fair value of listed securities is based on quoted () EWBFzAVFEEXNGEHRGRET
market prices in active markets at the end of the 5 2 TS RIE ©
reporting period.

(i) The fair value of the unlisted investment fund is (i) FLEMEESEREZATFENIZERRE
determined with reference to the prices quoted by the HREEBEBAMRZERET -EH2
respective General Partner at the end of the reporting —E-NAFF+ZA=T—HIEFE K&
period. During the year ended 31 December 2019, B2 P IE @ % E E$1,500,000/8 7T ©
the Group early redeemed HK$1,500,000 on the
investment fund.

Details of the fair value measurement of the Group’s listed REB FTRAZASARIEFTRAZT S Z AT

equity securities and unlisted fund investments are set out in B EFBEHN G M B WEMTE36 -

note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=+—HIEFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B BERBFELEEEH
2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FATT
Bank balances IR1THE 18,946 70,877
Cash balances HE 21 21

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 4AIRERERMNIRE KL

statement of cash flow ReEEIEE

18,967 70,898

Cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$18,867,000
(2018: HK$35,915,000) for the Group are denominated
in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control imposed by the PRC government.
The Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing
market rates.

At the end of reporting period, included in the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$4,286,000 (2018:
HK$31,029,000) were held by Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine.

REERE MRS EEHEE 418,867,000
TT(=ZZ— N\ : 35,915,000/ 70 ) JHAA R
Wﬁ,ﬁAEMI#QmR@fM 1) A B B

B 302 51 AP B R T O O1NEE B Il AR PR - AN SR B
&L@%&%%$%E¥%2ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ
HBARY -

RITERIRIRITHISN KRGS

REFRHERRACZR S LIECSEEEBE
FEML R E K E 7 FIA#X)4,286,00078 7T
(ZZ— \4F : 31,029,000/ 7T ) °
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24. Lease liabilities 24 FHEEE

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present RiBER HEaERISHEEN K ZBEL
value of the remaining leases payments, discounted at the UAREE 7 EEEEFRIIRETHE A5
Group’s incremental borrowing rate, and the aggregate effect =% JUNNE
is as follows:
HK$' 000
FERT

At 1 January 2019 (upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, R _—Z—hFE—A— B (A B EHEE

Leases) BIZE165RHE 2 1%) 7,715
Addition NE 4,972
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) B — MM B A &) (PFF7E30) 666
Lease payments made during the year FAZFZAENK (6,649)
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEABZBERA 243
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H 6,947
Represented by: 255
Amount classified under current liabilities MEBREE TS 5,566
Amount classified under non-current liabilities FERBaBE N OEc SR 1,381
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H 6,947
The directors considered the Group’s incremental borrowing EREER THEEEMENTSREREE
rate to be appropriate in view of the market environment MR BEERAEAEB RS EEFERBEE-

and economic conditions under which each remaining lease
operates.
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BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

24, Lease liabilities (Continued) 24 HERE®)
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
REHEEMR BEEENRZHE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—B-hF T\ ZB-hE  —T)\F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000

FTHER FiHT FER FAT
Within one year —FRN 6,069 - 5,566 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF
(BEEREMF) 1,430 - 1,381 -
7,499 6,947
Less: Future finance charges W RRBE T (552) - N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations HEET2IRE 6,947 - 6,047 -
Less: Amount due for settlement within - J&¢ : + — 1 3 R 2| HA(E
12 months (shown under current BZREGIERES S
liabilities) & (5,566) -
Amount due for settlement after TEABIAEE
12 months FIE 1,381 -
25. OTHER PAYABLES 25, H {th B BR X
2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other payables E AR RIE 5,251 5,629
Receipts in advance TEWGRIA 30,439 21,377
Accrued charges FEETER 4,539 2,243
40,229 29,249

180  CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. - shEIB#& S SN EMERA T



26. DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$25,180,000 (2018:
HK$39,722,000 ) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of such
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$18,601,000 (2018: HK$17,930,000) that are available to
carry forward indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had tax losses arising in the PRC of
approximately HK$6,579,000 (2018: HK$21,792,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

Deferred taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

26. JRIERIE

NS BETAR  AEE T AESEROR
F| 2 AR B F 1 TH B 18 #) 525,180,000/ 7T ( =
L — )\ 4 : 39,722,000/ 7T ) B 7R 7 6E T8 A
RAOHE TR - WA MR FBIERRIEL
MIBEE - ARERBEBEELEZMBEEED
18,601,000/ 7t( =& — JU 4 : 17,930,000/
J0) AR ERR Bl DR E A BB 2 A F)
AR ERT R o

IREE R BIEE 2 FIEE1846,579,00078 7T
(ZZT— )\ : 21,792,000 7T ) Al A—E R F
A AR VB $8 R 2R B BR A v ) o

EEBL A

INTAREEANBEFERRZ TBRLH
BEEREEE)

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

At the beginning of the year F4 5,891 5,891
Derecognition and reverse during the year REANTUEER &

B[l (5,891) -

At the end of the year FR - 5,891
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27.

28.

182

SHARE CAPITAL 27, R
The Group and the Company AEERAANT
Number of
shares  Share capital
BEE A<
HK$'000
T
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, HRZ-_ZE—\F—HF—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December —E-N\Ft+ZA=F—
2019 A —E—-—hF—HF—HkK
—E-AF+=-A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEBEO ST LBk 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRERE :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—A—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ERREEO BT LBk 3,565,897,033 356,590
Issue of shares by exercised of share E1 TR M 21 TR D
options 55,400,000 5,540
Issue of share placing ARMEEETIRD 130,000,000 13,000
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 R=Z—N\HE+=-A=+—
and 31 December 2019 B —ZZE—-hAE—A—BK
—E-hF+=-A=+—H
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEIBIZEER 3,751,297,033 375,130

RESERVES
(@) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 96 of the annual report.

28, {#&

(a) &=&EE

RERRAEFEARE B BRER
HEPNFREGCAZGAEZZHRK
eI
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. {FiE®)

(b) The Company (b) &AF]
Share-hased Convertible
Share payment note equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
RAEE DY LA EafE ZiThE &t
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
i3 T T T T Thn
1 January 2018 “3-)\f-f-H 382,783 78,953 29,815 (635,518) (93,967)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  AEE2EER
% - - - (241,375) (241,375)
Issue of shares by exercised of RiEkiRE
share option TEG10 17,204 (6,216) - - 10988
Issue of share placing FRRERTHRD 32,500 - - - 32,50
Transfer upon the lapse of share option B EA M B - 2919 - 2,919 -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-)\§
t-A=t-H 382,487 69,818 29815 (773974) (291,854)
Impact on nttal application of NYEREAS RS
HKFRS 16 ERE16% v T2 - - - (7,719) (7,719)
At 1 January 2019, as restated RZF-hE-A-A
(nE51) 382,487 69,818 2815 (781,689) (299,569)
Total comprenensive loss for the year A4 E2EEE
8% - - - (73985) (73.985)
Issue of share options kR - 30,800 - - 30,800
Transfer upon the lapse of share option B EA M B4 - (10,056) - 10,056 -
Release of deferred tax lablites 472 2 EFLH
previously recognised EaERR - - 5,801 - 5,801
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NEA
=t+-f 382,487 90,562 35,706 (845,618) (336,863)

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

28. RESERVES (Continued)

184

(b) The Company (Continued)

(c)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
the share premium of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. At 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserve available for distribution to shareholders
(2018: Nil).

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and after
deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance
costs of shares.

28. f#&®)
(b) AAF

AEBEAFBEREEBEEANKE
Z KB~ w2z IR E B R A E AR
BARABUBRITZRATMELIEZRE

REFASEFERRVANARREBER
AR R ERERUR B E BIR - AR A
BRENEENRABEGTIHZER
AR R R] A AR 7 IRAAD 5 (E o R —F
—NF+ZA=+—RB ARAEERAR
AR BRI A RRRD IR FEHE(Z
TN\F &)

EEZHEERER
() RP=EE

(c)

RIEFERERFE NARKMD
HEREE A HOIRT AR AR
RHEREZZDIKRE AR
ARRABRENEEEANRAEER
BIEFERHER - iR EE
BB SRR OEE BRETR
7 WINRRE AL BT R IR EIT
RARELZEE -
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises
the fair value of share options granted which
are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 4 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to accumulate
losses should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents
the value of the unexercised equity component
of convertible notes issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for convertible notes in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

28. f#&®)

(c) E2MERBNE

(i) BB HEfE

MBS EREEREBERRITEZ
Bz A FE FRYERRME4E
AR 52 @5HIREK - B HEABK
RETE HEREBEREARNDLE
fR BRI E SRR - R EER
REBARGTER

(iii) TRREIEE R EE

Ak ERERFEEREAARE#®
TTERARITEATRRRER 2 #S 5D
72 BE WREGEMBEREM
AEARL AT B R IR RN 2 B AT UK
R -

(iv) EZREFE
U B e B R R BB SN R AR
BRREL ZPBEN Z8 &

TR B AR A B IS 3R MY L 4P 8
ZEETBRERE
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 29 MR ERE
The movement of the convertible notes for the year is set out AT AR RIE R F N E B E R T3
below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
aEds RIS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHL FET
Carrying amount RZZ—-N\F—HA—BZEFEE
at 1 January 2018 24,420 29,815 54,235
Effective interest expense ERFERAE 10,225 - 10,225
Carrying amount R-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—-BE
at 31 December 2018 —T-NF—-H—-H2
and 1 January 2019 REE 34,645 29,815 64,460
Effective interest expense BB BT 13,024 - 13,024
Release of deferred tax liabilities TRIRER BT A
previously recognised & Bk - 5,891 5,891

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R=-Z—AF+-A=+—H
ZFREE 47,669 35,706 83,375
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

2011 D Convertible notes

On 14 September 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 D”), the principal terms of
the CN 2011 D are as follows:

Date of issue 14 September 2011
Aggregate principal amount  HK$22,500,000
Interest rate 3%

Conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 12 months from the date of

issue

As at 1 January 2014, the outstanding principal amount of
the CN 2011 D was HK$12,800,000. On 6 March 2014,
the Company has redeemed one trench of CN 2011 D with
the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 in accordance
with notice from the holder. The Company was contacting
the holder of CN 2011 D with the principal amount of
HK$2,800,000 in order to settle the remaining convertible
notes. As at 31 December 2019, the Company has yet
received any reply or notice from the holder of CN 2011
D while the Company has funds available for settlement.
Therefore the Company has accrued such amount of
HK$2,800,000 together with its interest accrued at the year
ended 31 December 2019.

29, AR EE @)

—ZE——FEaRRELED

RZB——FAATHBE ARFETES
RN MR RE(I T ——FAARER
D)) —F——F A RIRFEEDN T BN T

ZITHER —EZ—&%hA+WA
PINE 22,500,0005 7T

B 3%

HRE 0.50% 7T

/e = BE/THER12(EA

RZZE—WHFEF—F—R ZE——Fa ke
EDZ REEARSEH12,800,0008L - A =F
—WFE=AKRAB AREIRERBEABH - EE
N %810,000,0008 T2 —# ZF——F A
A& EHED o A &) IE A Bt 4% AN % ¥82,800, ooo,%
L ZE——FA MR EBDZIFE A - AE
ﬁ%T‘Hﬁ REE - RZZT—NAF+=A= +—

CRAREARERE T ——F A RREED 2
%ﬁ/\aﬁfﬂﬂ@?EEXL%u AN R E T 4
BES At ARFRREBE=ZZE-NE+=A
—+—HIFEEEA2,800,000/8 T R FERT
FE o
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
CN2020 Convertible notes

On 25 April 2017, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2020”), the principal terms of the
CN2020 are as follows:

Date of issue 25 April 2017
Aggregate principal amount  HK$91,581,000
Interest rate -

Conversion price HK$0.238
Maturity date 36 months from the date of
issue

(a) Conversion period

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of the
note in an amount of not less than HK$500,000
on each conversion (save that if at any time, the
principal outstanding amount of the note is less than
HK$500,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the notes may be
converted) into shares in board lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the issue date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.238 per share up to (and excluding)
the fifth business day immediately before the maturity
date.

29, AR EE @)
—EEFUBRRERE
RZE—+tFNA-+HB XRAIETE

ERENARERER(-_Z_FFAHARER
Bl —E-TFABMEREBENTIZGZOT

1THE —E—+FMA-+HH
PINE 91,581,000/ 7T

B -

HRE 0.238/& 7T,

/e = B 277 B B 51 361E A

(a) HBAE

EEFBABENERITABEERRE
FNEEHEREE ¥R (TREZB)
T ] B R 42 5 1% 0.238/8 ST K ¥ 1R iR (B
BRECEPRAMT D REERNSE
HBRAB—FHUEFRG  BXABREED
(8 & A 2 5T D F500,0007 7T (HE i
REMEETRBREENREERNSRE
A H¥500,00078 7T+ Bl AT W 3R AT A i R 4%
22 (MIEE B )REELLE)-
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

CN2020 Convertible notes (Continued)

(b) Issuer early redemption option

(c)

(d)

The Company may at its sole and absolute discretion
redeem the notes (or any part thereof) at its principal
amount outstanding together with interest at any time
and from time to time on or before the notes maturity
date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2020 as at 25 April 2017
amounted to HK$91,581,000 of which the fair value
of the debt component and call option together
is HK$32,070,000. The debt component and call
option are included in the liability component of the
convertible notes. The fair value is calculated using
binomial tree models at a rate based on the discount
rate of 9.46%.

The noteholders converted CN2020 in the principal
amount of HK$36,632,400 on 15 May 2017.

Reduction of convertible notes

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Beijing
Youli failed to meet the 2018 Profit Target (being
the net profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 in the amount
of HK$15,120,000), the consideration payable to
the vendors shall be reduced by approximately
HK$11,261,429 based on the formula set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

29, AR EE @)

—ECEFURRER@®

(b) RITAEFHEEIEERE

(c)

(d)

AR AR RERIH A k2 ATE A
RABLEREEASERFE 2 ER
BB R (KRB RE)

BEHSTZ14E

CECEFBRBRERR T —tFMWm
AZ+HAMRATFEAES1,581,000% T -

HAPEBIH D RREREZ ATEGH
32,070,000/ 7T * &5 80 5 M R0 ARt
ARBRERECBEDD c AFEIE
P~ N BHERNZ0. 46 %I BR IR RETHE -

RZF—EHFRA+HA FERFAA
ABMZTF_TFEARBRERNAEH
36,632,400/ 7T °

LU BRRERE

BE_Z-NE+-A=+—RBILEE -
TREHREER T N\FHEFBE
(Bt RBEHR T N\FNA—HEZ
T-NFZA=+—HHENKRBRED
#115,120,000% 7T ) IRIB 4R & B B 3R 3=
MisEo0FTE AL - BB 2 RER ALY
11,261,42978 7T
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29.

30

190

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
CN2020 Convertible notes (Continued)
(d) Reduction of convertible notes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the exercise in full of the
vested conversion rights would result in the issue and
allotment of approximately 183,559,542 new shares of
the Company.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% issued
share capital of Earth Spa from an independent third party
at a consideration of approximately SGD100,000 (equivalent
of approximately HK$574,000). Earth Spa is a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. Earth Spa is
principally engaged in the provision of healthcare services in
Singapore.

It is the Group’s long-term mission to maintain a diversified
investment portfolio and to explore suitable investment
opportunities. The directors are of the view that the
acquisition provides opportunities to the Company to
broaden its business portfolio.

29,

30.

AR ER
—E_EFUBRRER®E)
(d) BLEBRKEEREE)

RZEBE—-AEFE+-A=+—8 HBHIT
FERB 2z ARESEEEIT RELEY
183,559,542% AN A BT AL 17 °

WiE— B E LR

R-ZE—hhE+-_A=+—08 K&EEEF—
%8 3 % = 77 W BEEarth Spa#J100%C 2% 17
% 7K - AR (B & 49100,0005T N3 T (18 & 7 4
574,000/ 7T ) » Earth Spa&— &R #T i s i
RS2 BBR AT © Earth Spat EHE RN
RMHERRERS -

AEEZ RREBERBZITENREEARY
BRWAENRERE -EFRA WERHEHS
BN RAAEEBAES -
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30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Earth Spa is
attributable to the benefit of expected revenue growth
and future market development. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill as they do not meet the
recognition criteria for intangible assets.

Given that the acquisition date is 31 December 2019,
Earth Spa contributed revenue of approximately nil and
profit of approximately nil in the period between the date
of acquisition and the end of the reporting period. If the
acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2019, the
Group’s revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$64,937,000, and loss before tax for the year would have
been approximately HK$96,031,000.

30. W iE — B B 2~ =) (4

We¥Earth SpafE R BK MR R
RATIHBEOMaE - RS WA REEED 7
B2 RERTHABHAENERITE:

ENRBERRA-_T-NF+-_A=1+—8"
Earth Spa M e A HIZ & MR 2 HIF & B
WARBEFA /T - HBRBER T —NEF—
A—RAZEK MAKEAFEEZBARBL
64,937,000/ 7T » & 4 A BR B2 Al &5 18 5 B 4
96,031,000/ 7T, ©

HK$'000
FAT

Consideration satisfied by: RELZAAR :
Cash paid 23R4 574
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30.

192

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 30. W iE —FE B 8 2 J] (&)

(Continued)
The recognised amount of the identifiable assets and FUEE B A - Earth SpaZ AT BIEERAEZ
liabilities of Earth Spa at the date of acquisition is as follows: EHRSBWAT :
HK$'000
FET
Net assets (liabilities) acquired: FrE B E(aE)FE -
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) YIE BB M (RE17) 35
Right-of- use assets (Note 18) S E(MizE18) 634
Other receivables HAb EYGR IR 32
Cash and cash equivalents e kESEEER 102
Lease liabilities (Note 24) HEaETE24) (666)
Other payables HAbER IR (1,401)
Total identifiable net liabilities AR B EREER (1,264)
Goodwill (Note 16) P2 (fI7E16) 1,838
Total consideration BR(E 574
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEER EAMIR M FRE
Cash consideration paid BRERE (574)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEgER € MRS EEIER 102
(472)
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31. DEREGISTRATION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to an approval of deregistration issued by the local
authority, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Beijing Ke
Xiong Education Company Limited was deregistered during

1. ZE—BNE LT

RIBZWHBEL 2 EEIE AEE 22K
B AR R RERBE AR A RNFREH

the year.
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: &R EEFE
Other receivables HAb EMGRIE -
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve EEF B REE 2 HIR (541)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B NI (541)

There was no net inflow/outflow of cash equivalents in
respect of the deregistration of a subsidiary during the year.

FRETBEAFHEMNBARNES MREEE
BBRAWHFEE -
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32. COMMITMENTS 32, &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RREHRETNEAEREEEZE
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BARZ AT :
liabilities is as follows:
2019 2018
—2-NF —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Commitment to provide funding for joint A& &4 A BRI E S 2 &IE
venture’s capital 40,117 40,980

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of office premises and other asset, which fall due as
follows:

(b) FEHSEAERD

RS BHITER  AEBRRAEYE
REMEEZ TAIBIHEEMAEAEZ
ARSEHEFBZIRBERAT

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
TAT

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

—FR
F_EFERF(BEEEMRT) 2,513

7,004

9,517
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33.

34

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have materially contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period (2018: Nil).

PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s
assets (2018: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s
banking facilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note.

Unless otherwise disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not enter into any material
related party transactions during the year and did not have
any material balances with related parties at the end of the
reporting period.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year are disclosed in the note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group also identified other related party as below.

33. KAREE
RIERR AEEMEESE RNABE(Z
T N\F o HE)o

34, EERF

RBERR AREHBEEE(ZF—\F: &)
EEMERARBERITEEZER

3B5.BEHRS

ARBEEMNBE AR (EAARRR Z/E)H
ZRERR R GREERE L - WERNAMKE
R -

SR FRAMBREMBEEIN ARERF
I

W MAEMEARRBET RS ARHRE
REARE T WRAT M EAAEERR

FRAEEREERTIEEEEZEMKEZ
& BN AR A B SRR M 12

AR BT ARI A RRE T AT o

Ownership interest

FrEREER
Name Type Place of incorporation
=L LRl SR AR AL 3th BE 2019 2018
Beijing Youli Associate PRC 49% 49%
ERET /NS HE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.BE AR R H @)

(Continued)
Transactions with related parties are shown below: HRREHEITZ R ZHRIAT ¢
Loans to an associate BENTER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Beginning of the year F4 - 14,304
Loans repayment BEEN - (14,320)
Interest charged WERFILE, - 16
End of year FR - -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables, contingent consideration receivable, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, other payables, lease liabilities and convertible
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31
December 2019 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its other
receivables. In order to minimise credit risk, management
has certain monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivables regularly at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are adequately made for
irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are commercial banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

36. HEREERERBE

AEEZFTECRHITABTEEMBYGIE &
W ARE - BEBRRRAVEFEZERE
E ReLALFERBE HUEMER HE
BELRIBRRER ZEEMTAZHEBENE
AR R B R

AEESRMIAEAZTEZRRAEERR -
MEER INERRLRBECER - EFER
A RRIE S EELR 2B IE BRI XX
e AEERRAITETAZ @A BERHEANGEE
BATE SRR REAS -

EEER

WEXSHFTEEIBETREEEZE T —NF
tT-A=Z+—REMSRCEREREEZE
B AREARZBEANEERRSEAMBNR
MRAPTINRZ 2 FEE < FREE - AN B
RZEERREIZREEMBEEFE REE
BEEERR ERECDRUE TEERF
PREERERBETTEN B YO HIERS © LEIN - M E T
R AEEESRRSESRENREE SR
R AIRE e AR EER O SEEL -
WZBEBR ARRXZHF T /EBEREE
ARRET RS EETRZBERT SR
B2 EERBRAER AEEIESEETZ
EERE RBROMRBERZZXHHTFH
REF -
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36.

198

—NFE+ZA=T—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s bank deposits. All the deposits are on a floating rate
basis.

The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. However, the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less any
interest-bearing financial liabilities) is closely monitored by
management.

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points) in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s loss before tax and accumulated
losses by approximately HK$95,000 (2018: HK$354,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the non-derivative financial liabilities
in existence at that date. The 50 basis points increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), for the years 2019 and
2018. Such exposure arises from Company’s subsidiary’s
intergroup transactions with the Company and recognised
liabilities denominated in HK$ that is not the functional
currency of the subsidiary whose functional currency is RMB.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

36. I AREER S RBHE

BN

$%l2ﬂfﬂ e T BERBAKBEZRITHF
K o FIA R AE BN RGBS o

7R 5% [ 3 4 N P 2 B 0T A T AL R B R A R
o R > AEB 2 FR0FB(AIRITERR A
ERFEERAR) ZHXRBRAETEET Y

BESR o
o

RZZE-hE+-_A=+—8 HFFX
R TS0 EER (- — )\ WM%%)
(FIEHMESRETE) BEREAEBRH
Al &5 1B N 25T E 18R, 15 11 4995,000% T
—Z—)\4 : 354,000/87T)°

bt 7 BREE DM TS ERR NI E B HA R

RESMET BCEAREAFEZIFITE
ERMAEFIRRER X AT B60MEE
E%ﬁﬁuﬂ%ﬁ%TTEFi&iEIH;@ﬁLHﬁFEJWf‘J
RZABAREFEL 2R — T~ \FZ
MERIEEETHRBON -

SNEEE L B

RZEBE-NFR-ZT-N\FFE A5ERA
HNXZUEEBRRIZIRARE(AR
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AREETZEBEARFR S REERARE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points (2018: 10 basis points)
in HK$/RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s loss before
tax and accumulated losses by approximately HK$253,000
(2018: HK$178,000).

Liquidity risk

For the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents considered adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation

in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors its working
capital requirements regularly.

The following table details the contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates) and the earliest date the Group can be required to
pay:

36. WHEMEERE RBER®

SINGEE [ B (48)

ZFE.EHIJIEM\M Mzﬂz R BEEBH
PERINER Y ENFERZREPEKR
HNEE LB

R_ZE—h&+=-_A=+—8" 1&‘:+;%sz@/\
REERLEEF TEHIOEEZH(=F
FA0EEE) B EMEERIFTIE ) Hq%
BN E BT A EIE R 25HEEE N, R A4
253,000/ 7L ( =& — /\F : 178,000 7T)°

/)Ibﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

REBAKBZRBESRAR AREERER
HBRSMREFERENEEERRENZ
K ARAKEXRGRHTEES MRER
EMENDTE - ERES TR REE
HEBEEHK-

TRFHINAEERHREMRNEREBEE O
HER ERABEBRBCITORNRASRE
(BREARTHORRETE 2 M B MAF) BAREE L
A NFRZ P BHEE

More than one  More than two Total
Ondemandor  yearbutless yearsbutless undiscounted Carrying
within one year than two years than five years cash flow amount
EZX —ENt WENL FREE
F-FR BMERR BREENR REAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T TiET T
At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+t=A=t-H
Financial liabilities tREE
Other payables AN 40,229 - - 40,229 40,229
Lease liabilties HERE 6,069 1,430 - 7,499 6,947
Convertible notes THREE 54,949 - - 54,949 47,669
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H
Financial liabilities SREE
Other payables Hth BT 29,249 - - 29,249 29,249
Convertible notes THREE - 54,949 - 54,949 34,645
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

THMTAZHE

31 December

36. WHEMEERE RBER®

31 December

2019 2018
—E-nE T \F
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Fair value though profit or loss BRERERATEHNE
— Contingent consideration receivable —JEM AR E 16,025 14,619
— Fund investments —EeRE 10,013 15,107
— Held for trading equity securities —RBEEERNIEE 305 507
Amortised cost (including cash and i (BiERe R
cash equivalents) REEMEEE) 105,393 147,947
Financial liabilities A= =R
Amortised cost B SRR 16,737 42,517
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis

36, S AR EE R E REE

SRT R
BREEMEETBZ N FEER

Fair value hierarchy as at 31/12/2019
R-BE-AF+ZA=+—HZLAFEEHR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£— FH E=&K aF
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FERx FET FET FEx

Financial assets SREE
Held for trading-listed equity HIEEBE - LW
securities IR A % 305 - - 305
Contingent consideration receivable FEW 2k SR B - - 16,025 16,025
Unlisted fund investments FELTEDRE - 10,013 - 10,013
Fair value hierarchy as at 31/12/2018
RZZE—NFF+ZA=+—HZAFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H F F=H a5t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FAET FET FET FET
Financial assets cREE
Held for trading-listed equity HIEEBE—-Ltm
securities IRAZEH 507 - - 507
Unlisted fund investments FLETESKE - 15,107 - 15,107
Contingent consideration receivable FEU LA AE - - 14,619 14,619

—Z—hEE$ - Annual Report 2019 201



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

36.

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quotes
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
group is the current bid price. The instruments are included
inlevel 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2018: Nil).

36, S AR EE R E REE

SRT R

EERTISEE @RI AZ A FERBRE
MR 2 IS METIRK o & (B 7] ADBS A B
EHRHH X 58 KL -FAALT EER
BEXNEERBERS MRFERRAKREIF
RHEEETZERNERT SR ZE  &H
BRERER AEEBEZEREERRZ
MEHRESERETRE - UETABEES
—#e

RARERMS LEE ERTAZ AFER
RGEETAEE - REFEHENAZERAATE
R2MGEE(NAEE) YR EEERE
EfbEt - ETARFEMBTZIMEEEHR
RAIEE MR T AR ASE -

FR EREENEBRBBEZF —BNE-R
ZEHEEBEATENE TEEARERSE
ZR(ZFN\F )
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

36. I AREER S RBHE

SRT R
RBE=PIRAHEFEZEELK

level 3:
Contingent consideration
receivable
EWRHARE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January wn—HA—H 14,619 520
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss W B 25 iR A E(E 5 1,406 14,685
Exchange realignment PE 5 % - (586)
16,025 14,619

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at the end of reporting period:

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

AEERHERRAAGERFEAHEFE
RS E R R ABURIRE

RERRFEFENS AEEBFTELE
RRABXRAERRBOREERRZINBA
BERK-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

36, S AR EE R E REE

SRT R

F_MAFEFE

Effect on fair value

Unobservable for increase of

Description Valuation technique  inputs Range inputs
BABBEMHAY
it RER TUERRAYE &E B8
Contingent consideration  Discounted cash flows  Profit forecast HK$4,044,430 to HK$6,066,646 Increase
receivable (2018:HK$4,044,430 to HK$6,066,646)
ERFARE ENRBERE MR 4,044 4307 71.256,066,646/5 7T )l
(ZZ—\F : 4,044,430/ 70%6,066,646/5 1)

Discount rate 4.9% (2018: 4.9%) Increase

B (ZZ—N\F :49%) s
Fair value AL 2]
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EEDAE NEAUBREBRZANSHEER
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated SEAENEREEE AT EAEE-
financial statements approximate their fair values.
Capital risk management EXRFEBREE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AREFETEHER BENEBETEENISE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while @ EE AR EETEa EEEREST
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation AR AEE SIS SO R - KEEKE B
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy B EF A RARIE & o

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
mainly includes convertible notes, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

REENE RSB OENE EhEERET
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group
is in order to maintain its listing on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the
shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
regularly on substantial share interests showing the non-
public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with
the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2019,
more than 25% (2018: 25%) of the Company’s shares were
in public hands.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

At annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May
2011, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) and the share option scheme
adopted on 24 November 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) became
terminated therefrom. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 23 May 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
Upon termination of Old Scheme, no further Options under
the Old Scheme can be granted but the Options which
have been granted during the life of the Old Scheme shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue and the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

36. WHEMEERE RBER®

37

ARREEERRAEAERE -ahBied &
SEBEAKA R ZERERNER AR R
BREENES ARESEEBTHRN KK
NEEARBETHERIBERREGER  FE
ERENGEE-

REBZNPERBRBERERB Rz £
AL - HEBED26%RMN Z RRFFRE

AEEBTHEEROHBEEZRER L 2T
HRBEREWREZERRMOEERE  ZHRER
TARERBEFEFEFTE25%ZEH R
—E-NFF+ZA=ZT—H ARAKRHZE
25%(—F—)\4F : 26%)HAFIEE o

BABR % A3 8 & 5

EARBR-_T——FRA-_T=HETZ
BRERIBERE L A0 AR HT 60 BB IR T
g BEETE ) MR_FTFT—F+—A
— B RA AT EI([ &1 8 ) Bl
- BRESEH T ——FRA-+=HE
R BRIFERESHAERT - RIS f Rz BERT 1
FARABAM - FRIEEF IR BT EREE S
E-SERLBERE MREFERHMAD R
2 BB AR S B AR IR EL BT IR N GEM £ T
MAISE23F 2 -] FATfE -
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37.
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SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the participants and for such other purposes as
the Board may approved from time to time.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
Options to any participants, including full time and part time
employees, directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors), consultants, advisors,
suppliers and customers of the Group, and the Invested
Entity and other persons who, at the sole determination of
the Board, have made contributions or will contribute to
the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
price determined by the Board and shall be no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the Option which must be a business day, (i)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
Options; and (i) the nominal value of a share on the date of
offer of the Options.

An offer of Option shall remain open for acceptance by the
participant to whom an offer is made for a period from the
offer date to such date as the Board may determine and
specify in the offer letter (both days inclusive), provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
10th anniversary from the adoption date of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has
been terminated in accordance with the provisions hereof,
whichever is earlier. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of an Option.

37. LR YR EHM

fBReEsTE

BREASZENREARRAABEREN
FRETREANLTHE - 26 R wHER
SENNEFE TR EZ BB R -

REBRETE EFSRREIASEE B
AEEZ2BERBES EF(BEIFNTE
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue at as the date of approval
of the limit. The maximum number of shares issuable under
the Option to each eligible participant in the Scheme Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Any grant of Options to a participant who is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or their
respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding independent non-
executive director who is grantee). In addition, any Options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

37. LR YR EHM

BRETE )

RIBRE R 8] R AN R ML E b B AT 8l
B 2 P A R R T R R A T 8IT 2
RE - AT FBEMEARREE EITRNE
210% o MAEMR+ 8 A B A - IRIREAE
AT TRBEREFENEERZBENRD
R ERNARBEMREESETRMD
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M28EAARARES EaTRAELEE
BRIABESECHEAT)RLERE &
BEVIEANTES(TREFAERAZEL
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L2 A A TR A B AN A RIS
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B EBRIE R FTE ) 8 335,000,00078 7T HY B I%
BRI RS LS it -
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37.

208

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 2 July 2019, a total of 375,100,000 share options (the
“Share Options”) were granted by the Company to certain
eligible participants (the “Grantees”) to subscribe for ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 23 May 2011.

The exercise price of Share Options granted is HK$0.155
per Share, which represents the highest of (i) HK$0.144,
being the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; (i) HK$0.155, being the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) HK$0.1,
being the nominal value of each Share. The consideration
for the grant of the Share Options is HK$1 to be paid by
each of the Grantees upon acceptance of the Share Options
granted. The validity and exercise period of the Share
Options is 10 years from the date of grant.

Among the above 375,100,000 Share Options granted,
a total of 46,600,000 Share Options were granted to the
directors and chief executive.

37. LR YR EHM

BRETE )

R-ZE-NAFELtA-R BBEARAN -
——FRAZT=HRMZERETE AA
AIMETEER2HEE([ARA DRSO ES
375,100,00017 & Az 1 ([ BE Az i | ) REE AR &)
BREBOAEB T2 ERBR(TRMD])).

ERHOERETEERETR0155E T 8
ERTASEZ&SE © ()0.1448 7 BN
EARMARBRMARE EAHRKME:
(0. 15587 MEZEFEE AT A EZEE AR
1B R P B ek L PR 2 MR (E  (i)0.1
BT BEREBRH cEE REEREZRE
REZAR ARENR L BRER BT -
IR A U AT B A B B A EIREN0
io

# F3t375,100,00010 % K 2 B E R - K E
46,600,000/ BEMRIER TE S RITHAER,
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

37. LR YR EHM

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BIRERTEE)
The movements in the Options during the year ended 31 HE-_Z—NF+ZA=T—"HLEFE £ARQ
December 2019 are shown in the following table: TSR B ENE N TR
Lapsed/
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price  1January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2019 the year the year the year 2019
i B
Z2-0F g ZE-NE
SEENL RUAE RARERS SREE  -A-B  FAEH  FROE AW/EE TSASt-B
HKS
B
Directors
g=
Yuan Wei 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RE 1512/2016 15112/2016 - 14/12/2026 0311 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
171062017 17/05/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0155 - 30,600,000 - - 30,600,000
Zhang Jianxin 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
REH 1512/2016 15112/2016 - 14/12/2026 0311 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 5000000 - - 5,000,000
Zheng Zhijng 17/06/2017 17/06/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
BiER
Yang Qingchun 02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
REE
Tang Juuda 02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
AT
Lu Xiaowei 02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
B
Wang Hui 02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Iz
Subtotal 53,000,000 46,600,000 - - 99,600,000
gt
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 37. LR (TR E HE (=)
COMPENSATION (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BARRET )
Lapsed/
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2019 the year the year the year 2019
i i
ZE-0E R ZR-NE
SRERA RAH TRARERY SROGE -A-R EARE  FRTE  AM/EE T-ASt-A
HKS
A
Others
Eft
In aggregate 09/07/2009 09/07/2009 - 08/07/2019 0652 14936322 - - (1493632 -
aft
In aggregate 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 81,000,000 - - - 81,000,000
aft
In aggregate 15/12/2016 15/12/2016 - 14/12/2026 0311 283,000,000 - - - 283,000,000
Akt
In aggregate 17/06/2017 17/05/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 255,200,000 - - - 255,200,000
Akt
In aggregate 02/07/2019 02/07/2019 - 01/07/2029 0.155 - 328,500,000 - - 328,500,000
aft
634,136,322 328,500,000 - (14936322 947,700,000
Exercisable at the end of 1,047,300,000
the year
RERAE
Weighted average HKD0.303% T HKDO.155% T - HKDOB52%ET  HKDO.245% 7T
exercise price
INETS7{E B
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The movements in the Options during the year ended 31

AR RESTEI ()

BE_ZT-N\F+-A=+—RHILFE A2

37. LR YR EHM

December 2018 are shown in the following table: BERE BN T & -
Lapsed/
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2018 the year the year the year 2018
i i
“E-N\E R “E-N\E
uERE RiAH TRERERS SROEE  -A-R FRRE  FAAE  AM/EE T-A=t-A
HKS
A
Directors
£
Yuan Wei 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RE
1511212016 1611212016 - 14/12/2026 0311 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
17/06/2017 17/06/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Zhang Jianxin 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
b=
1511212016 1611212016 - 14/12/2026 0.311 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Zheng Zhijng 17/06/2017 17/06/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
BiER
Li Qunsheng (resigned  17/05/2017 17/06/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
on 02/08/2018)
SHB(R-E-NF
NAZBEE)
Subtotal 56,000,000 - - - 56,000,000
i
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 37. IR X fHE S % =)
COMPENSATION (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BARRET )
Lapsed/
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2018 the year the year the year 2018
i i
“B-N\% R “E-N\E
SRENL RiAH TRERERS SRA¥E  -A-B EARY  EAGE  AW/EH t2A=t-A
HKS
A
Others
Eft
In aggregate 28/08/2008 28/08/2008 - 27/08/2018 1.281 9,230,311 - - (9,230311) -
At
In aggregate 09/07/2009 09/07/2009 - 08/07/2019 0652 14936322 - - - 14,936,322
At
In aggregate 09/09/2015 09/09/2015 - 08/09/2025 028 99,600,000 - (18,600,000 - 81,000,000
At
In aggregate 1511212016 1511212016 - 14/12/2026 0311 315,000,000 - (32,000,000 - 283,000,000
At
In aggregate 17/06/2017 17/06/2017 - 16/05/2027 0285 257,000,000 - (4,800,000 - 252,200,000
At
695,766,633 - (654000000  (9.230311) 631,136,322
Exercisable at the end of the year 667,136,322
RERTTTR
Weighted average exercise price HKDO.32E 7T - HKDOJ0ET HKD128%T  HKDO.S0AT

MEHEE
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@

(Continued)

On 2 July 2019, the Company granted 375,100,000
Options to Grantees under the Company’s Share
Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share
options were granted by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the number
of Options granted was 375,100,000. Of which,
46,600,000 Options were granted to the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”), 288,500,000 Options
were granted to the employees of the Company
(the “Employees”) and 40,000,000 Options were
granted to the Company’s external consultants (the
“Consultants”). The fair value of Options granted
under the Share Option Scheme, amounted to
HK$30,800,000 of average HK$0.082 each. The
fair values of the outstanding Options were derived
from Binomial Option Pricing Model by applying the
following assumptions:

37. LR YR EHM

BRETE )

@)

(%)

RoB-AFEAZA ARTRER=
T——41 8=+ RN BRA
2l - AR AR H11375,100,00017 B AR -

HE_Z-/\F+_A=1T—HILFE"
RN BIGER L RBAE

REEZZT—NF+A=+—HIEF
[§ % /B8 IR #E 2B A375,100,000
3o B & 46,600,000 8§ A% 4 B T
AR aEESE(ESE ) 288,500,0001
ERERTARAERE(TEE DUK
40,000,00017 & IR AEHE T A2 A HMNEE R
fl ([ B ) o IR IRBE AR AE AT B FTI H BE AR
82 F{E 530,800,000 7T - FD B
7159 50.082/8 7T 8 AR 17 {8 B8 IR 4 &Y
ANEENZERPREEENGTE X
FAfFAT -

Date of grant Expected  Contractual life Risk-free Expected
(dd.mm.yy) Grantee volatility (in years) interest rate dividend yield
RiHAH ANES
(A-A-%) ARA BHRIE (%) ERBRE BHRER
02.07.2019 Directors 73.5% 10 1.50% Nl &
“T-NELAZA 8%
Employees 73.5% 10 1.50% Nl &
B8
Consultants 73.5% 10 1.50% NIl &
il
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 37. LR (TR E HE (=)
COMPENSATION (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) R AEETEI(=)
@  (Continued) @ (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group BE_Z-NF+_A=+—BILFE"

recognised the total expenses of approximately AEFEEREERARRR L BRE R

HK$30,800,000 in relation to share Options granted i 7 49530,800,000/8 7T °

by the Company.

()  the expected volatilities for the Options granted () BREBERESTEIRERERS
were based on the historical volatility of the BloombergZs 22 7] 2 I& 8 7 JFE 52K
share prices of the Company as extracted from IBEE
Bloomberg.

(i)  the applicable risk free rates were generated (i) A& E g A =X J) B BloombergiR
from Bloomberg based on the Hong Kong BEEABBMI0OFHESE B RME
Government 10 years Bond Yield matching the A EREIRE 2 B EIMERLS o

assumed life of the Options.
(i) the expected dividend yields were estimated (i) FEHARR B R THIZFE LB (T ) (haT e

based on the historical dividend, which was
zero.
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37. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

38.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b)

The values of the Options are subject to the limitations
of the Binomial Option Pricing Model and a number
of assumptions which are subjective and difficult to
ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The outstanding Options under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2019 was 1,047,300,000
(2018: 687,136,322 ) representing about 27.9% (2018:
18.32%) of the shares of the Company at the year end
date.

If Options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed,
the related share-based payment will be transferred
directly to retained earnings/accumulated losses.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(the “COVID-19 outbreak”) has spread across the PRC
and other countries and it has affected the business and

economic activities of the Group to some extent. The overall

financial effect cannot be reliably estimated as of the date

of these consolidated financial statements. The Group will

closely monitor the development of the COVID-19 outbreak

and continue to evaluate its impact on the business, the

financial position and operating results of the Group.

37. LR YR EHM

BRETE )

b)) BEENEEX -EAMETEENZ
PRl A K2 2 TH £ B0 S B DARETE 2 (RRR AT
TE IBERRZEHAHAHEMGE
RERTE -

© RZE—hRhF+ZHA=+—80" 8
fRREETEITE T 2 4 R 1T 60 &9 B AR 4
#1,047,300,000 fA( = & — J\ F:
687,136,322(0 ) (G R R AR F4EH B %
FTREAD 27 9% ( —F— )\ : 18.32%)°

(o) frEREBERN M R AT HROL - B RE
AR N RIBR EREBREREARN,
REtEiE -

38. HEHREA

BT _ZFMUR FTRERESIHA
(fTcovID-19% B N EEF R R EMBERELE -
WE—ERE LHAEENEBREETH
ERTE BERSREMBHREABEH B
B EEEANEGT AEEABTRYER
COVID-19& 1B Mt & WHEE T HEYAEE
75 BRI RIS EEENTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=+—HIEFE

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 39. RERSRBRME
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities ESEF AL AE Y HE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRHIAEFERETFHFESLQE Y B
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- 15 BIER S RIS EE - i EHEL Y
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BEAEARED KR EARESRELS
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will NEBEE iwhgﬁ/\*ﬁﬁrﬂﬁ/ﬁgzgﬁbﬁ
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash k==L

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Impact of initial Interest charged
application of Acquisition of a on lease 31 December
1 January 2019 HKFRS 16 Addition subsidiary liabilities Cash flow 2019

NSEREAN
2N BREERE0 bE-EHEL REEERUR Z2-EC
-A-H ith hE i ZHIE RERE A=t-8
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Lease iabiities Note 24) TS BB (Mizko4) - 7,715 4972 666 243 (6,649) 6,947
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

40. A2 B B Bk Rk

ARBNIRERR 2 ABARAREROT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bzt THT TER

Assets and liabilities EEREE

Non-current assets FrBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER NG 337 977
Right-of-use assets EREAE 447 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  ERIBZHIRATEFE v SREE 10,013 15,107
Investments in subsidiaries RIEBREZ%E - 9,996
10,797 26,080

Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hh AR 79,441 75,177
Amounts due from subsidiaries YNGR 3,750 4
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BB AT EFEv S REE 304 507
Cash and cash equivalents RekHRLSEER (247) 27,980
83,248 103,668
Total assets BEHAE 94,045 129,748
Current liabilities REEE

Lease liabilities HEAR 2,818 -
Other payables Hin e iR 5,201 5,936
Convertible notes BERE 47,669 -
55,778 5,936

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes aREE - 34,645
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIEAR - 5,891
- 40,536
Total liabilities BEHE 55,778 46,472
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 40. Z< 1 T) B # AR Ik ()
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-nE —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bizx THERr TERT
Net current assets REEEFE 27,470 97,732
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBAE 38,267 123,812
Net assets EEFE 38,267 83,276
Capital and reserves BARFHE
Share capital AR 27 375,130 375,130
Reserves fEE 28 (336,863) (291,854)
Total equity MR 38,267 83,276
Yuan Wei Zhang Jianxin
=E REHT
Director Director
EE3 EFE
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES M. MEARIZFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December ITEWMBARIR - E—AFE+_A=1+—8B2Z

2019 are as follows: 3= N
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion
registration/ Paid up share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AL/
MEBLRER /el HERK/ERER RARRAEELA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B Rk
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZZ-0EF ZZ-\F ZE-NF —T-N\%
China E-Learning Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100% - - Provision of management services to
(Hong Kong) Limited group companies
FERRHE(BE) Bk TBTERR BRI ERRE
B AR
New Beida Business BVI Ordinary shares US$10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
StudyNet Group Limited
HEABSRSEERAT EERAES 10,0005 T £k REER
Best Boom Enterprises BVI Ordinary shares US$10 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
Best Boom Enterprises ~~ EBELEE 10ELERER RER
Limited
Bejing Hua Tuo Education ~ PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Provision of occupational education,
Technology Company HK$40,000,000 industry certification course, skills
Limited (note @) training and education consultation
IRERSERRARAA F 40,000,000 AR REBEHREDERE
(Mfta) RaE RHE#A
Beijing Ke Xiong Education  PRC Registered capital - - - 100% Provision of occupational education,
Company Limited RMB5,000,000 industry certification course, skills
(note aand b) training and education consultation
ERREHEARAR  H AR5,000,0007 REBEHRNEDERE.
(Mzkakb) FMER BRI kAR #:
IN Medical (BVI) Group BVI Ordinary shares - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited HK$13,677,288
HREZEBVEEARAR RBRNEE  13677.88ETLERER REER
IN Medical Group Limited ~ Hong Kong QOrdinary shares - - 100% 100% Investment holding
BREEEXERAR  BE HK$3,000,000
3,000,008 L EE K REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES M. B R T ZFF)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion
registration/ Paid up share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AL/
MEARER i/ gEnE  MERA/ERER RARERERLA TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
= i
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0EF ZT-\F ZE-NF —T-N\%
Hunan IIN Medical Network  PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Development RMB14,530,808
Company Limited (note a)
MEERREBANERS P AE%14,530,8087C RATRR
BRARA(fitTa) AR
Distance Education College  PRC Registered capital - - 51% 51%  Provision of distance learning program
of Beijing University of RMB900,000 in Chinese medicine
Chinese Medicine
RPEERE H ANEE900,0007T AR REMBEERYERE
BRUEER
Sinzhongyi Consultancy ~ Singapore Registered capital 100% 100% - - Chinese medicine health center and
PTE. Ltd. SGD1,746,725 training center
HRBAARBERRA AR 1,746, 72551 LA AR BRET ORI
Earth Spa Inc PTE Ltd. Singapore Registered capital - - 100% - Provision of healthcare services
SGD50,000

EathSpalnc PTEL.  #j0% 50,0008 L HER REBBERERS

Note: Bi3E -

a.  These are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the a. BEFBRKIZINEREDE-

PRC.

b. Pursuant to an approval of deregistration issued by the local b. RIE SRR s It mRIEHE
authority, Beijing Ke Xiong Education Company Limited was BRABIERF AN - sEi8 2 FHBEETIRH
deregistered during the year. Details of the deregistration was ¥31
set out in note 31.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting RERIFRETARER - ZFMHBARLEE

at the end of the year or at any time during the year. BB ES
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned

M. B R T ZFF)

FEEMBARMAEAIEREE ZFH5 -

TRETAEEFZEMBARMAEAIE

subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling feREZS 2 5615
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation interests held by Profit allocated to Dividend paid to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary and non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
principal
place of
KEARER business FERERARRLS ARTHERER 2R ENFERERRS EHERE
AR
IREEHE 311219 3112118 311219 3112118 3112119 3112118 3112119 311218
—hE -Nf —hE —NE -hE -N& —hE -NF
tZA=t-8 TZA=T-B tZA=t-B TZA=T-B t2A=t-R TZA=t-B ftZR=t-R TZA=1-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TEn TR TER Tén TERL
Distance Education College of ~ PRC 49% 49% 8,639 11,89 22591 - 3,726 17,678
Beiing University of Chinese
Medicine
TRPRERSREHESR  HE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BERASENERRMAEASERED 2
A ER BT o TI A B E R B %
BABEBEIF AT 2 £ -
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Distance Education College of Beijing University of Chinese

Medicine

41, B A T 2 B o

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current assets MENVEE 19,371 39,591
Non-current assets JEmENEE 383 685
Current liabilities DEUN=NE (30,439) (22,631)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - -
Revenue Weas 63,124 57,856
Other income H b as 12 11
Total expenses < 4 %E (45,505) (33,726)
Profit for the year FRE R 17,631 24,141
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREWEETE 17,631 24,141
Net cash flow generated from EEESMS IR RE F538
operating activities 19,352 25,525
Net cash flow generated from (used in) WEEHTE(FTA)
investing activities 2B MEFE 12 (569)
Net cash flow used in financial activities BEEBMACRSREFRE (46,105) -
Net change in cash and equivalents ReMReSEIEEFE)F5HE (26,741) 24,956
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